
OSAWATOMIE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

December 14, 2023 

6:30 p.m. | Memorial Hall | 411 11th Street 

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call
3. Pledge of Allegiance
4. Invocation
5. Consent Agenda

Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council member requests an item be
removed for discussion and separate action.

A. December 14, 2023 Agenda
B. November 30, 2023 Meeting Minutes
C. Pay Application(s)

- BG Consultants – JB and So. Levee Loop KDOT/TA Grant - $6,961.50
- BG Consultants – Water Distribution Improvements - $2,290.00
- BG Consultants – 2022/2023 Street Improvements - $5,336.25
- BG Consultants – WWTP Improvements - $1,243.58
- BG Consultants – City Engineer Services - $7,467.00
- Killough Construction, Inc. – Brown Ave. #6 - $1,001,004.58.

D. Special Event Permit(s)
6. Comments from the Public

Citizen participation will be limited to 5 minutes.  Stand & be recognized by the Mayor.
7. Public Hearing

A. Hearing Concerning Condemnation of 1116 4th Street
B. Hearing Concerning Condemnation of 719 5th Street
C. Hearing Concerning Condemnation of 321 Mill Street

8. Presentations, Proclamations, and Appointments
A. OzCommons Phase II “The Hub” Final Recommendations – Architect One, Vireo, Shockey Consulting

9. Unfinished Business
A. Resolution 1193 – Condemnation of 1116 4th Street
B. Resolution 1194 – Condemnation of 719 5th Street
C. Resolution 1195 – Condemnation of 321 Mill Street

10. New Business
A. Resolution 1196 – Review of Council Policies 101 through 110 (No Action)
B. Resolution 1197 – Authorizing Agreement for Construction Observation Services
C. Resolution 1198 - Resolution Upholding the Recommendation of the Planning Commission for

Application REZ2023-002
11. Council Report
12. Mayor’s Report
13. City Manager & Staff Report
14. Adjourn

NEXT REGULAR MEETING – December 28, 2023 



Osawatomie, Kansas. November 30, 2023.  The Council Meeting was held at Memorial Hall 
located at 411 11th Street.  Mayor Nick Hampson called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Council 
members present were: Schasteen, Macek, Diehm, Dickinson, LaDuex, Bratton and Filipin.  
Council member Cathy Caldwell was absent.  City Staff present at the meeting were: City Manager 
Bret Glendening, City Clerk Tammy Seamands, City Attorney Jeff Deane and Public Works 
Director Michele Silsbee. Members of the public were: Derek Henness Hyun Ju Gil and Michelle 
Chester. 
 
 INVOCATION. – Pastor Hyun Ju Gil, Osawatomie First United Methodist Church 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA.  Approval of November 30, 2023 Agenda, November 9th Council 
Meeting Minutes, Pay Application – BG Consultants –$520.00 - Street Improvements, Pay 
Application – BG Consultants - $3,435.00 – Water Distribution Improvements, Pay Application – 
KDOT – $37,485.00 - TA Levee & John Brown Loops, Pay Application – BG Consultants - 
$1,157.00 – WWTP Improvements, Special Event Permit – Brad Ziegler KC Running Company 
– Mile Zero Trailhead, 10-23 Council Report.  Motion made by LaDuex, seconded by Dickinson 
to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Yeas:  All 
 
 COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC.  
 
 Pastor Hyun Ju Gil – We have a Christmas concert on December 16th at 2:00 PM at the 
Osawatomie First United Methodist Church.  We also have a Christmas evening service at 11:00 
p.m. and everyone is welcome. 
 
 PUBLIC HEARINGS. -None. 
  

PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS. – None. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS.   
 
RESOLUTION 1187 –AUTHORIZING SALE OF 904 CHESTNUT, LOTS 15-18 - 

With the recently modified text to the city’s zoning regulations making, it easier to split lots into 
their original plats, we are able to ensure that we adhere to the natural development patterns that 
have existing in Osawatomie as a railroad community.  
 
The property at 904 Chestnut is one such example. The city was able to purchase this property, 
confirm title work, demolish a home that was already on the condemnation list this year and 
clean the property up, and survey the property. The cost to the city was $4,250/lot and there are 4 
lots.  
 
A single-family or multi-family residence shall be built to the 2018 International Residential 
Code standards within 12 months of conveyance of the property to Buyer or the land will revert 
back to the City of Osawatomie. 
 
Prior to conveyance of the described property, Buyer shall demonstrate to the reasonable 
satisfaction of the City Manager or his/her designees, that he/she has adequate financial means in 

1



place or committed to ensure that the construction of the residence on the property can be 
commenced and completed according to the time line established by this resolution.  
All utilities shall be installed (electric, water, wastewater, and gas as applicable). 
Should Buyer fail to comply with the terms of the agreement, Buyer agrees to give the Seller a 
Quit Claim Deed reverting the property back to the Seller, Buyer releases any further claim or 
interest in property including any partial construction. 
No refund of monies will be given if the Buyer fails to comply with any terms of the agreement.  
 
The RFP was posted on the city web site for all to see. City Staff received 3 bids for the 4 lots at 
904 Chestnut. The bidders and bids were as follows: 
 
SSGK, LLC dba Wright Way Homes - $1,500/lot 
Elite Windows and Siding LLC - $3,000/lot 
Joseph Canfield – JDC Remodeling, LLC - $4,000/lot 
 
Assuming an 1,800 square foot single family residence will be built on each lot, with an 
estimated value of $200,000/per lot, this nets the city an additional $7,176/year in property taxes 
($1,794/home). Add in utilities at an average cost of $250/month per home ($1,000 total) and 
you have an additional $12,000/year in utility revenue as well.  Motion made by Bratton, 
seconded by Filipin to approve Resolution 1187 –Selling Lots 15, 16, 17 and 18 in block 1 of 
Robert’s second addition in the City of Osawatomie, formerly known as 904 Chestnut as 
presented.  Yeas: All. 

 
RESOLUTION 1188 – AUTHORIZING ASSISTANCE PACKAGE FOR 

BUSINESSES ALONG 6TH STREET – (No action) At the November 9th council meeting we 
started a discussing the possibility of creating a 6th Street Business Assistance Program to 
provide some aid to businesses during the reconstruction of 6th Street. I’ve worked with Janet 
McRae, the Economic Development Director for Miami County as well as the Director of the 
Osawatomie Chamber of Commerce, Jennifer Williams. 
 
Essentially, there are three pieces to the program: 
 

1.) Wayfinding signage (construction orange with black lettering) directing people to the 
businesses on 6th Street as well as letting the public know that the businesses are still 
open. Signage expenses are expected to be around $500. 
 

2.) A monthly drawing for a prize of up to a $100 value (similar to the Miracle on Main 
Street boxes we do during the holiday season). This is one prize per month. Businesses 
along 6th Street must be patronized with a minimum of $10 spent at the business before 
qualifying to enter the drawing. Maximum cost will be $1,200. 
 

3.) Partial utility reimbursements. Businesses must apply for and demonstrate a need. The 
application process won’t be overly burdensome. We are merely wanting to determine 
that there is a true need as opposed to basic desire to get most of a utility bill reimbursed. 
The AVERAGE per month for every business along 6th Street is ~ $26,000/month and 
on an annual basis, it is approximately $295,000. If every business applied, if every 

2



business was eligible, and every business was impacted based on the definition of 
“impacted” that is in the resolution, this would be the cost. I believe a rough assumption 
of the total impact taking into account that not every business will qualify and not every 
business will be impacted for the duration of the project, we could safely assume that this 
will cost the city roughly $100,000.   
 
 

RESOLUTION 1189 – AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE GIA FOR 
SOLAR ARRAY - In October of 2021, the city began discussions with KMEA and Evergy Energy 
Partners (non-regulated subsidiary of Evergy Kansas Central) about the feasibility of constructing 
a solar array on city owned property across 335th from the Osawatomie State Hospital. From those 
discussions, it was determined that partnering with Evergy was a more cost-effective way to 
diversify our electric portfolio into more renewable energy sources. 

 
The intent was to pool our needs with the needs of other KMEA members, which is what we did, 
albeit not with as many cities as we initially thought, but at no additional cost to the city or its 
electric customers. So, in January of 2022, the city entered into a solar development agreement 
and shortly thereafter in February, we entered into a power purchase agreement (PPA) with 
Evergy.  
 
Since that time, the council has also approved a resolution to purchase the transformers for the 
small substation that would need to be built as part of our obligation under the development 
agreement and PPA. You may remember that our obligation started at the high side of 
transformer(s) and included any support steel, switches, and other materials. Evergy’s obligation 
ended at the low voltage side of the transformer. 
 
This agreement allows the interconnection of the solar array to the Osawatomie distribution 
system. 
 
There will be a second GIA that we need to sign in the first quarter of next year. This GIA will 
allow us to push our behind the meter generation out to the grid and sell into the integrated 
marketplace.  Motion made by Dickinson, seconded by Schasteen to approve Resolution 1189 – 
Authorizing the execution of a generation interconnection agreement with Every Kansas Central, 
Inc. as presented.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 RESOLUTION 1191- ACCEPTING CHANGES TO CITY COUNCIL POLICY 109 
(FOOD TRUCK POLICY) - Updates focus on the relocation of mobile food vendors to the 
developing “Hub” space, currently known publicly as “Main Street Plaza.” This community 
plaza space is designed to become a destination for members of the public and has been recently 
updated to include electric pedestals, outdoor seating, and a renovated pedestrian-friendly base of 
crushed stone. Future developments will continue to enhance the space and make it more inviting 
and encourage multiple uses. 
 

3



Moving mobile food vendors from the 5th and Main intersection to the downtown location also 
improves visitor safety and removes the need for pedestrians to cross busy intersections or stand 
in an active parking lot while visiting a mobile food vendor. 
 
Other amendments take into consideration location and timing of mobile vendors when nearby 
brick-and-mortar restaurants in the community.  Motion made by Schasteen, seconded by 
LaDuex to approve Resolution 1191 – Directing the City Manager to implement certain changes 
to City Council Policy No. 109 – Food Truck Policy as presented.  Yeas:  All. 
 
  
 NEW BUSINESS.   
  
 RESOLUTION 1190 – TEMPORARY CHANGE TO PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING TIME - This resolution would change the starting time of the planning commission 
meetings to 5:00 pm through July 2024 as they begin the process of an update the future land use 
map, comprehensive plan, zoning regulations and subdivision regulations.  Motion made by 
LaDuex, seconded by Bratton to approve Resolution 1190 – Concurring with the Osawatomie 
Planning Commission on setting the meeting time for the planning commission to 5:00 pm through 
July 2024 as presented.  Yeas:  All. 
 

RESOLUTION 1192 – CHANGES TO CITY OF OSAWATOMIE EMPLOYEE 
HANDBOOK/PERSONNEL POLICY-LONGEVITY ELIGIBILITY – The City of Osawatomie 
Employee Handbook is updated as necessary to reflect best practices. One needed update is the 
clarification on which employees are eligible for annual longevity payments. The current 
language is vague and could be interpreted in multiple ways. Changes to the section will create 
much greater transparency and continuity in policy, and allows the organization to better 
recognize employees for their years of service. 
 
Financial Impact: 

2022 TOTAL  $          8,150.00 
2023 TOTAL W/OUT 

FIRE  $           8,625.00 
2023 TOTAL W/ FIRE  $         12,800.00 

 
Longevity payouts in November 2022 were tabulated for full-time and regular part-time staff 
only. It was the first year that part-time staff members were included. Administration decided to 
add fire department employees into the tabulations for 2023.  Motion made by Bratton, seconded 
by Filipin to approve Resolution 1192 – Directing the city manager to update the City of 
Osawatomie Employee Handbook section regarding employee longevity eligibility as presented.  
Yeas:  All. 
 
  
 EXECUTIVE SESSION – None. 
 
  COUNCIL REPORTS  
 

4



Karen LaDuex ~ I attended the Mayor’s Tree lighting and the tree is gorgeous.  It was a very 
nice event. 

 
Kevin Schasteen ~ Thank you to everyone that helped Pride to spruce up Main Stret for the 

holidays. 
 

MAYOR’S REPORT - The Christmas tree does look nice.  Ground Guys did a good 
job.    

 
CITY MANAGER & STAFF REPORTS.    
 

 Bret Glendening ~ I am working on the budget amendment.  The budget hearing will be 
set for December 28th.  Council will also need to start thinking about an executive session to do 
my six months evaluation. 
 
 Michele Silsbee ~ gave an update on the street repairs.  Don’t forget to RSVP for the City 
Christmas party that will be held on December 16th at the Elks. 
 
 OTHER DISCUSSION/MOTIONS. 
 
 Motion made by Macek, seconded by Schasteen to adjourn.  Yeas:  All.  The mayor 
declared the meeting adjourned at 07:20 p.m. 
 
                    /s/ Tammy Seamands                       
       Tammy Seamands, City Clerk  

5



INVOICE NO. 37

Bret Glendening, Deputy City Manager

City of Osawatomie, Kansas

439 Main Street

Osawatomie, KS 66064

Re:  20-1414L - Osawatomie WWTP Improvements

Engineering Services:

Task Lump Sum Amount Completion Progress Total

1. Preliminary Design Phase $117,000.00 100.0% $117,000.00

2. Final Design Phase* $92,000.00 100.0% $92,000.00

3. Bidding and Negotiating Phase $20,000.00 100.0% $20,000.00

4. Approvals and Permitting $15,000.00 100.0% $15,000.00

5. Construction Substantial Completion $5,000.00 0.0% $0.00

*Updated, refer to Contract Amendment 01

Subtotal Amount Due: $0.00

Total Completed to date: $244,000.00

Prior Billings to Date: $244,000.00

Resident Project Observation

Contract Amount 234,000.00$                 

Work Completed to Date 234,000.00$                 100.0%

Work Previously Billed 232,756.42$                 

Subtotal $1,243.58

Additional Services

Contract Amount 5,000.00$                     

Work Completed to Date 5,000.00$                     100%

Work Previously Billed 5,000.00$                     

Subtotal $0.00

Total Amount Due: $1,243.58

Sincerely,

BG CONSULTANTS, INC.

Abby Mills, PE, CFM

Project Engineer

December 4, 2023

 -------------------Invoice for Consulting Services-------------------

This invoice is for services which were performed during the month of November as follows:

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------

 4806 Vue Du Lac Place  •  Manhattan, Kansas 66503

T: 785.537.7448  •  Web: www.bgcons.com
6



*  by email only  *
City of Osawatomie December 5, 2023
Attn: Bret Glendening, Deputy City Manager
439 Main Street INVOICE #16
Osawatomie, KS 66064

Re: 2023 Osawatomie Water Distribution Improvements BG Project No. 22-1195L
Osawatomie, Kansas

 ----------------------------------Invoice for Consulting Services-----------------------------------

This Invoice is for services performed during the month of November 2023 as follows:

Lump Sum
Amount

% Complete
ProgressBasic Services Subtotal

Preliminary Design………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…$ 613,800.00 66.00% $ 405,108.00
Final Design………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…$ 502,200.00 27.00% $ 135,594.00
Bidding………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…$ 40,000.00 25.00% $ 10,000.00
Construction Phase………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…$ 229,000.00 10.50% $ 24,045.00
Post-Construction………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…$ 15,000.00 0.00% $ -

Subtotal #1 = $ 574,747.00

Resident Project Representative (RPR)
RPR Services (Not to Exceed)………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…$ 974,000.00

Engineer IV………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…0.0 hrs @ $ 144.00 /hr $ -
Engineer II………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…0.0 hrs @ $ 130.00 /hr $ -
Senior Construction Observer………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…0.0 hrs @ $ 120.00 /hr $ -
Certified Construction Observer………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…0.0 hrs @ $ 103.00 /hr $ -

Subtotal #2 = $ -
Total Construction Observation Services Billed Thru this Invoice………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…$ -
Contract Value of Construction Observation Services Remaining………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…$ 974,000.00

Total Amount of Services Complete (Subtotals #1 + #2)…………………………………$ 574,747.00
Less Previous Amount Billed (Thru Invoices:  #15)…………………………………………………………..$ 572,457.00
Total Amount Owed this Invoice………………………………………………………….. $ 2,290.00
Plus Previous Invoices Unpaid (none)…………………………………………………….. $ -
Total Amount Owed to Date………………………………………………………………. $ 2,290.00

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE THIS INVOICE $ 2,290.00

For questions, please contact me at 785-537-7448 or brian.foster@bgcons.com.

Sincerely,

Brian J. Foster
Vice President

 1405 Wakarusa Drive  •  Lawrence, Kansas 66049
T: 785.749.4474  •  Web: www.bgcons.com7



City of Osawatomie

c/o Bret Glendening, City Manager

439 Main Street

Osawatomie, KS  66064

Re:  City Engineering Duties

       23-1022L

On-Call Services

Colton Steele

6th Street Submittal Reviews

INTERN ENGINEER/ARCHITECT II 14 hrs @ $131.00 per hour $1,834.00

Colton Steele

6th Street Utility Pole Coordination

INTERN ENGINEER/ARCHITECT II 4 hrs @ $131.00 per hour $524.00

Colton Steele

6th Street Change Order

INTERN ENGINEER/ARCHITECT II 27 hrs @ $131.00 per hour $3,537.00

Colton Steele

Brown Avenue Change Order #2

INTERN ENGINEER/ARCHITECT II 12 hrs @ $131.00 per hour $1,572.00

Subtotal: $7,467.00

Total Amount Due $7,467.00

Sincerely,

BG CONSULTANTS, INC.

Brian P. Kingsley, P.E.

Principal

December 5, 2023

 -------------------Invoice for Consulting Services-------------------

This invoice is for services which were performed through the month of November as follows:

 ---------------------------------------------------------------------

 1405 Wakarusa Drive  •  Lawrence, Kansas 66049

T: 785.749.4474  •  Web: www.bgcons.com8



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:     1

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

ADMINISTRATION         GENERAL OPERATING  OSAWATOMIE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE                  RAFFLE PRIZES - MIRACLE ON       1,000.00

                                          CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                       78.84

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                       83.07

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                    1,544.19

                                          FIRST OPTION BANK                               DOMAIN REGISTRATION                  8.95

                                                                                          HALLOWEEN CANDY                    203.74

                                                                                          REIMBURSED TRAVEL                  256.96-

                                                                                          HOTEL LEAGUE CONFERENCE          1,470.28

                                                                                          SERVER / ADDON                      45.00

                                          KANSAS GAS SERVICE                              GAS SERVICES                       793.71

                                          LEAGUE OF KS MUNICIPALITIES                     KACM FALL CONFERENCE - GLE         175.00

                                          MIAMI LUMBER INC.                               DOOR FOR MH                        267.73

                                                                                          BRICKMOULD & HINGE                  58.77

                                          UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS                            HALL - INSTRUCTOR SCHOOL           275.00

                                          WAL-MART CAPITAL ONE                            TRAIL OF TEARS MEAL                 92.94

                                          QUILL CORPORATION                               BATTERIES, TISSUES, CLEAN,          22.25

                                                                                          BATTERIES, TISSUES, CLEAN,         102.48

                                                                                          BATTERIES, TISSUES, CLEAN,          97.99

                                          MISCELLANEOUS   SEYMOUR, OLIVIA                 SEYMOUR, OLIVIA: ESSAY CON         250.00

                                                          BLACKMAN, HAVEN                 BLACKMAN, HAVEN:ESSAY CONT         175.00

                                                          SPRADLING, SOPHIE               SPRADLING, SOPHIE:ESSAY CO         100.00

                                                          SECHREST, MEKAH                 SECHREST, MEKAH:ESSAY CONT          50.00

                                                          ROEHL, DEE                      ROEHL, DEE: TRAINING  REIM          57.33

                                          TALLEY, DEBBIE                                  MH CUSTODIAN NOV 2023              375.00

                                                                                          DEC 2023 MEMORIAL HALL CUS         375.00

                                          ALLENBRAND-DREWS & ASSOC., INC                  BOUNDARY LINE DECLARATION        2,250.00

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                              18.88

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                  5,464.53

                                          KSFIBERNET                                      INTERNET SERVICES                  370.23

                                          RICOH USA, INC.                                 COPIES                              41.60

                                                                                          COPIES                             410.07

                                          RICOH USA, INC.                                 COPIER RENTAL - CITY HALL          260.47

                                          REDISHRED KANSAS INC.                           SHREDDING SERVICES                  33.99

                                                                                          SHREDDING SERVICES                  33.99

                                                                                          SHREDDING SERVICES EXTRAS           30.00

                                          EVERGY                                          UTILITY BILLS                       49.52

                                          LIPPERT MECHANICAL SERVICE CORP                 BOILER REPAIRS                   2,441.29

                                          SEAMANDS, TAMMY                                 CITY CLERK ACADEMY REIMBUR         253.11

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                   254.83

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES          245.56

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES           161.82

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03           143.25

                                          MOON,  SAMANTHA                                 REIMBURSE HOTEL FOR ICMA C       1,933.95

                                          LAUBER MUNICIPAL LAW, LLC                       10/23 - CITY ATTORNEY            2,450.00

                                                                                          10/31- COUNCIL MEETINGS          1,592.50

                                          BRIGHTSPEED                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    53.62

                                                                                          PHONE SERVICES                      53.75

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                                49.69

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES        1,189.95

                                                                                          PASSWORD KEEPER                     15.00

                                          SCANLON, MICHAEL JAMES                          NOV 2023 CONSULTING              8,333.00

                                          CHERRYROAD MEDIA                                HEARING                            104.32

                                                                                          OCT 2023 LEGAL NOTICES             995.21

                                          OPTIMAL IMAGING SUPPLIES LLC                    BROTHER INK                        204.92

                                          BIERMAN'S CHRISTMAS TREE FARM                   MAYORS CHRISTMAS TREE              800.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          37,684.36

 
9



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:     2

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

CODES ENFORCEMENT      GENERAL OPERATING  FIRST OPTION BANK                               MEMBERSHIP DUES                     40.00

                                                                                          KACE FALL CONFERENCE               200.00

                                          RURAL WATER DIST. #2                            RURAL WATER SERVICE                 99.23

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONE & HOT SPOT              126.41

                                                                                          PHONES, IPADS, CAMERAS             127.93

                                          DREXEL TECHNOLOGIES INC                         CAT LINE DRAWINGS                  170.32

                                          KSFIBERNET                                      INTERNET SERVICES                   41.14

                                          ELLIS, DAVID                                    MILEAGE & MEALS                    233.32

                                          EVERGY                                          UTILITY BILLS                      302.07

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    47.79

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           46.05

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            30.35

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            26.86

                                          COMMERCIAL CAPITAL LEASING, LLC                 HP DESIGN JET                      195.00

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                               221.77

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          223.15

                                          STIFTER, TYLER                                  10/21 - NUSIANCE MOWING            980.00

                                          INSTITUTE FOR BUILDING TECHNOLOGY AND           114 3RD PARTY INSPECTION           320.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,431.39

 

POLICE                 GENERAL OPERATING  BREWER'S AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR INC                  LUBE & OIL CHANGE                   43.20

                                                                                          BRAKE PAD REPLACEMENT              197.08

                                          CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                      653.84

                                          FIRST OPTION BANK                               DRINKING WATER                      23.00

                                                                                          SOFTWARE SECURITY                   95.97

                                                                                          TISSUE KEYS                         20.92

                                                                                          ULTRA DAWN                           8.50

                                                                                          DRINKING WATER                      17.25

                                                                                          GLOVES, EDIDENCE SUPPLIES          331.67

                                          FAMILY CENTER FARM & HOME                       KEY CUT                              4.35

                                          KANSAS GAS SERVICE                              GAS SERVICES                        62.96

                                          WAL-MART CAPITAL ONE                            COFFEE, COCOA                       36.26

                                          GALL'S INC                                      FT1775 BLCK ATAC STORM DZ          150.99

                                          GENERATOR SERVICES INC                          GENERATOR REPAIRS                  298.26

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE PD                           30.18

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                  4,135.32

                                          AXON ENTERPRISE INC                             10GB EVIDENCE CART STORAGE       1,274.00

                                          REDISHRED KANSAS INC.                           SHREDDING SERVICES                  33.99

                                                                                          SHREDDING SERVICES                  33.99

                                          KANSAS TURNPIKE AUTHORITY                       TOLLS - WICHITA                     10.00

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                   350.40

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES          337.66

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES           222.51

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03           196.98

                                          TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES                      PD COPIER                          195.64

                                          TRANSUNION RISK & ALTERNATIVE                   OCT 2023 - PERSON SEARCHES         136.00

                                          OPTIMUM                                         CABLE SERVICES                      14.86

                                                                                          CABLE SERVICES                      14.86

                                          BRIGHTSPEED                                     PHONE & INTERNET                   109.37

                                                                                          PHONE SERVICES                     110.27

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                             3,548.81

                                          CCG SAFETY GEAR LLC                             UNIFORM BODY ARMOR                 908.69

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES        1,636.25_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          15,244.03

 

CABIN                  GENERAL OPERATING  CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                      207.14

10



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:     3

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                          KANSAS GAS SERVICE                              GAS SERVICES                       189.69

                                          BRADLEY AIR CONDITIONING & HEATING              TUNE UP FURNANCE                   120.00

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    47.79

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           46.05

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            30.35

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            26.86

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          223.15_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:             891.03

 

STREETS & ALLEYS       GENERAL OPERATING  CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                        5.37

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                      248.55

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                        1.50

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                      588.96

                                          O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                             HEX BIT SET                         35.98-

                                          FAMILY CENTER FARM & HOME                       FILTER REPLACEMENT BIT INS          31.96

                                          KANSAS GAS SERVICE                              GAS SERVICES                       157.82

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONE & HOT SPOT              121.48

                                                                                          PHONES, IPADS, CAMERAS             121.48

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                              96.42

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    787.68

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    47.79

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           46.05

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            30.35

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            26.86

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                               648.51

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          223.15

                                                                                          PASSWORD KEEPER                      2.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           3,150.45

 

PARKS & CEMETERIES     GENERAL OPERATING  BREWER'S AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR INC                  TIRE REPAIR                         12.00

                                          CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                        5.37

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                      248.55

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                      103.51

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                        7.50

                                          O'REILLY AUTO PARTS                             SWEEPING COM                        24.99

                                          FIRST OPTION BANK                               TRASH BAGS                          89.22

                                                                                          TRASH BAGS                          82.46

                                          FAMILY CENTER FARM & HOME                       TRACTOR & SMALL ENG PARTS           63.78

                                                                                          GLOVES & FLY TRAP STICKY            19.97

                                          RURAL WATER DIST. #2                            RURAL WATER SERVICE                 44.00

                                          VIKING INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY                        CLEANING PRODUCTS & SUPPLI         716.49

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONE & HOT SPOT               40.01

                                                                                          PHONES, IPADS, CAMERAS              40.01

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                              96.42

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    196.92

                                          EVERGY                                          UTILITY BILLS                       18.15

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    31.90

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           30.74

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            20.26

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            17.93

                                          THE GROUND GUYS OF OLATHE                       OCT 2023 MONTHLY MAINT          13,762.55

                                                                                          LEVY MOWING OCTOBER 2023           720.00

                                                                                          CONTRACT MOWING - NOV 2023      13,762.55

                                                                                          LEVY MOWING - NOV 2023           1,025.00

                                          WATERS HARDWARE                                 HOSE HANDLER REEL                   41.99

                                          MCCREA MANAGEMENT LLC                           OCT & NOV MONTHLY MANAGEME       1,000.00

11



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:     4

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                               499.69

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          148.95

                                                                                          PASSWORD KEEPER                      2.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          32,873.41

 

FIRE                   GENERAL OPERATING  CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                      520.43

                                          FIRST OPTION BANK                               DOOR REPAIR                        782.00

                                          FAMILY CENTER FARM & HOME                       PLUG ANGLE 30/50 AMP POLE           14.99

                                          KANSAS GAS SERVICE                              GAS SERVICES                       118.57

                                          WYCOFF'S LOCKSMITHING                           HON FILE CABINET LOCK & KE         102.54

                                          WAL-MART CAPITAL ONE                            FIREHOUSE OPEN HOUSE ITEM          113.58

                                          MISCELLANEOUS   EAGLE ENGRAVING INC             EAGLE ENGRAVING INC:CROSS          179.81

                                                          FAREWAY MEAT MARKET             FAREWAY MEAT MARKET:FIRE C       1,329.93

                                          BRADLEY AIR CONDITIONING & HEATING              REPLACE DUAL CAPACITOR             144.32

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                              22.26

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                   111.46

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES          107.41

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - FIRE PAYROLL SERVI         316.12

                                                                                          11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            70.78

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            62.66

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                               168.48

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          520.50

                                          JERRY INGRAM FIRE & RESCUE                      RYDER EXTRICATION GLOVES           516.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,201.84

 

MUNICIPAL COURT        GENERAL OPERATING  SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                  2,953.80

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    47.79

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           46.05

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            30.35

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            26.86

                                          LAUBER MUNICIPAL LAW, LLC                       10/31 - CITY PROSECUTOR          8,915.00

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          223.15_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          12,243.00

 

LIBRARY                GENERAL OPERATING  CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                      575.80

                                          FIRST OPTION BANK                               BOOKS                               17.19

                                                                                          BOOKS                               20.49

                                                                                          GAMES                                3.76

                                                                                          BULBS                                2.50

                                                                                          HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES                   6.28

                                                                                          SPECIAL PROJECT SUPPLIES             9.94

                                                                                          ORNAMENTS                           16.25

                                                                                          BOOKS                               60.99

                                                                                          BOOKS                               15.96

                                          KANSAS GAS SERVICE                              GAS SERVICES                        70.55

                                          BAKER & TAYLOR                                  BOOKS                               81.66

                                                                                          BOOKS                               27.90

                                                                                          BOOKS                               15.73

                                                                                          BOOKS                               61.75

                                                                                          BOOKS                              136.03

                                                                                          BOOKS                              138.70

                                                                                          BOOKS                               47.08

                                                                                          BOOKS                              114.85

                                          NEKLS                                           THERMAL PAPER RECEIPT ROLL          12.72

                                                                                          PATRON CARDS                        36.00

                                          MISCELLANEOUS   LINDWOOD COMMUNITY LIB          LINDWOOD COMMUNITY LIBRARY          11.00

12



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:     5

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                                          MURPHY, AMANDA                  MURPHY, AMANDA: TRAINING R           9.88

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                              85.44

                                                                                          LIBRARY RECYCLING                   10.61

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    196.92

                                          GOOD GUYS PLUMBING INC                          RAN KITCHEN SINK LINE TO M         135.00

                                          MIDWEST TAPE                                    DIGITAL MEDIA - OCT 2023           212.50

                                          KWIKOM COMMUNICATIONS                           LIBRARY INTERNET SERVICES           95.00

                                          RICOH USA, INC.                                 LIBRARY COPIER                      82.66

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    15.89

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           15.31

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            10.09

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03             8.93

                                          BRIGHTSPEED                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    52.86

                                                                                          PHONE SERVICES                      52.58

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES           74.20_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,541.00

 

WATER ADMINISTRATION   WATER              KANSAS DEPT OF REVENUE                          3RD QTR CLEAN DRINKING           1,878.64

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                              96.42

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    400.73

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS                 474.05

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023                 470.10

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS         118.04

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                  127.88

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2         739.22

                                          POSTALOCITY.COM                                 POSTAGE - UTILITY BILLING          500.00

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN         778.92

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          39.40

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN           9.80_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           5,633.20

 

WATER TREATMENT        WATER              CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                    5,089.43

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                      151.95

                                          OLATHE WINWATER WORKS                           6 1/8 FFRR FLAG PACK                38.00

                                                                                          6" FLG CHECK VALVE               2,140.00

                                          FIRST OPTION BANK                               CABLE WIRE                           9.99

                                          FAMILY CENTER FARM & HOME                       DUAL SIDED BRUSH & MICE GL           5.98

                                          KANSAS DEPT OF HEALTH & ENVIRO                  B. HURT WATER CERTIFICATE           20.00

                                                                                          WIYNIGER TESTING FEES               25.00

                                          WAL-MART CAPITAL ONE                            WATER & VINEGAR                     30.40

                                                                                          FOLGERS COFFEE                      25.96

                                          USA BLUE BOOK                                   HACH DR300 CHLORINE                679.25

                                                                                          SUPER LUBE SYNTHETIC GREAS         133.56

                                                                                          AMMONIA POWDERS                    429.64

                                          HAWKINS INC                                     Freight                             31.00

                                                                                          #1 pump tube                       111.75

                                                                                          #2 pump tube                       111.75

                                                                                          #5 pump tube                       111.75

                                                                                          Polymer                          3,392.93

                                                                                          Bleach                           2,052.60

                                                                                          Ammonia                            805.39

                                                                                          Freight                             33.50

                                                                                          Polymer                          3,392.93

                                                                                          Bleach                           1,959.30

                                                                                          347                                710.64

                                                                                          freight                             33.50

13



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:     6

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                                                                          polymer                          3,097.33

                                                                                          Bleach                           2,052.60

                                                                                          Ammonia                            829.08

                                                                                          freight                             33.50

                                                                                          Polymer                          3,407.07

                                                                                          Bleach                           2,612.40

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONE & HOT SPOT              140.76

                                                                                          PHONES, IPADS, CAMERAS             140.76

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                              37.65

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    935.21

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS                 949.99

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023               1,009.22

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS         175.73

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                   34.11

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2       1,543.12

                                          R. E. PEDROTTI CO., INC.                        PROGRAMMING ENGINEER TRAVE         488.00

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    47.79

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           46.05

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            30.35

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            26.86

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN       2,184.98

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          21.00

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          88.28

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          24.88

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          223.15

                                                                                          PASSWORD KEEPER                      1.67

                                          HAYNES EQUIPMENT CO.                            GREYLINE METER                   1,500.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          43,207.74

 

WATER DISTRIBUTION     WATER              BREWER'S AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR INC                  CROSSWIND A/T 10 PLY TIRES         152.75

                                          CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                        5.37

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                       51.85

                                          FIRST OPTION BANK                               LITHIUM BATTERIES                   10.25

                                          FAMILY CENTER FARM & HOME                       COUPLING, TAPE PLUGS, ADAP         104.61

                                          BG CONSULTANTS INC                              15 - WATER DIST IMPROV - 1       3,435.00

                                          OIL PATCH PUMP & SUPPLY INC                     CAP STD BLK 2"                      13.30

                                          KILLOUGH CONSTRUCTION INC                       PLANT MIX - WATER LEAK REP         344.38

                                                                                          PLANT MIX                          134.00

                                                                                          PLANT MIX - 10/11                  603.00

                                          KANSAS ONE CALL SYSTEM INC                      OCT 2023 - LOCATES                  38.40

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONE & HOT SPOT               60.74

                                                                                          CELL PHONE & HOT SPOT               40.01

                                                                                          PHONES, IPADS, CAMERAS              60.74

                                                                                          PHONES, IPADS, CAMERAS              40.01

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                UTILITY SHOP CLEAN OUT              20.79

                                          MIDWEST COLLISION II                            Deer Accident                    8,786.49

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    263.88

                                          CORE & MAIN LP                                  METER RETROFIT - OMNI+2 R2         398.00

                                                                                          FEMALE COUPLING                    259.44

                                                                                          2" Water service Mat             4,276.68

                                                                                          BLUE FLAGS                         140.00

                                                                                          COUPLINGS                        1,333.72

                                                                                          COUPLINGS                        1,478.04

                                                                                          COUPLINGS                        1,310.45

                                                                                          HYMAX 2 FLIP COUPLING              813.72

                                                                                          3" FLANGE ACCESSORY KIT             45.92

14



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:     7

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS                 293.68

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023                 290.59

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS          84.38

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                    9.38

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2         474.20

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    16.01

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           15.43

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            10.17

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03             9.00

                                          FORTILINE WATERWORKS                            MAIN VLV REP KIT                 1,318.00

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          12.60

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                               437.77

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES           74.76

                                          120 WATER                                       PWS PRO                          9,000.00

                                                                                          LCRR LIF sampling                1,200.00

                                                                                          Comms + PTD Module               1,200.00

                                                                                          LCRR Managed Service             5,000.00

                                                                                          Compliance Sampling              5,000.00

                                                                                          Data Services                    5,000.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          53,667.51

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       ELECTRIC           MISCELLANEOUS   FOXWORTH, RICQUE                01-030400-31                       100.66

                                                          KC 1 PROPERTY GROUP             01-104700-04                       219.62

                                                          FREEL, ALLEN                    01-167600-28                        77.32

                                                          GASKINS, CECIL                  01-051300-10                        66.18

                                                          GIBBONS, LARRY                  01-085700-19                        16.31

                                                          WOODS, TRISHA                   01-110700-06                        94.20

                                                          KC NEW DAY LLC                  01-132000-17                       131.98

                                                          HOPE ANTHEM CHURCH              01-165700-04                       247.73

                                                          H & K LLC                       01-172800-02                        97.13

                                                          BURNS, RACHEL                   01-202000-14                        92.66

                                                          THE CORNERSTONE BY C            01-218100-03                       576.58_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,720.37

 

ELECTRIC ADMINISTRATIO ELECTRIC           KANSAS DEPT OF REVENUE                          OCT 2023 - UTILITIES SALES       2,645.84

                                                                                          OCT 2023 - UTILITIES SALES       4,882.27

                                                                                          OCT 2023 - UTILITIES SALES       4,184.80

                                                                                          OCT 2023 - UTILITIES SALES       1,553.79

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    390.91

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS                 494.08

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023                 488.39

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS         119.35

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                  129.20

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2         763.02

                                          POSTALOCITY.COM                                 POSTAGE - UTILITY BILLING        2,600.00

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN         910.02

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          45.14

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          11.42_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          19,218.23

 

ELECTRIC PRODUCTION    ELECTRIC           HALL'S BOBCAT SERVICE                           SUBSTATION ROAD BUILD            5,654.55

                                          KMEA                                            OCTOBER 2023 - EMP1             20,928.73

                                                                                          OCTOBER 2023 - EMP1             22,440.01

                                                                                          NOVEMBER 2023 - GRDA            87,743.00

                                                                                          OCTOBER 2023 - SPA               2,256.04

                                                                                          OCTOBER 2023 - WAPA              8,071.00

15



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:     8

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                          KANSAS GAS SERVICE                              GAS SERVICES                        44.46

                                                                                          GAS SERVICES                       234.32

                                          MIAMI LUMBER INC.                               CHAIN LINK FENCING GAUGE B         257.05

                                                                                          CHAIN LINK FENCING                  34.99-

                                          MISCELLANEOUS   NUESSEN, RODNEY                 NUESSEN, RODNEY:GENERATOR          287.00

                                          BELGER CARTAGE SERVICE INC                      Sub Transformer Crane           70,743.00

                                          GERKEN RENT-ALL INC                             GENERATOR TOWABLE 70KW             770.00

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONE & HOT SPOT              140.76

                                                                                          PHONES, IPADS, CAMERAS             140.76

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                              96.42

                                                                                          REFUSE                              37.65

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    212.66

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS                 113.83

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023                 120.27

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS           3.67

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                    4.87

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2         183.58

                                          EVERGY                                          UTILITY BILLS                       45.14

                                          POWERTECH, LLC                                  Work around control issue        2,923.99

                                          MOON,  SAMANTHA                                 REIMBURSE FOR UTLITIES LUN         286.20

                                          WATERS HARDWARE                                 REDUCER ADAPTER CONNECTOR           33.44

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN         269.00

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          10.98

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN           3.10

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                               427.83

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    PASSWORD KEEPER                      1.67

                                          GERE'S LLC                                      TRUCK & TRAILER HAULING         14,200.90_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         238,650.89

 

ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION  ELECTRIC           BREWER'S AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR INC                  INTERSTATE BATTERIES               526.00

                                          CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                       83.79

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                       51.85

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                       35.64

                                          FIRST OPTION BANK                               LITHIUM BATTERIES                   10.24

                                                                                          POWER OUTAGE MEAL                  172.71

                                                                                          BATTERIES                           78.69

                                                                                          SPRING PIN & TOOTH                 105.06

                                          DITCH WITCH SALES INC                           REPLACED BATTERY TRAY ASSE       1,014.03

                                          MID AMERICAN SIGNAL INC                         TIME CLOCK WITH HARNESS SC         640.00

                                          KANSAS ONE CALL SYSTEM INC                      OCT 2023 - LOCATES                  38.40

                                          T & R ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO. INC                   112.5 pad mount WYE             49,275.36

                                          CITY ELECTRICAL SUPPLY COMPANY                  45W LED BULB                       532.20

                                          APPLIED MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES                    NINJA ICE 7GA GLOVES               336.02

                                          VERIZON WIRELESS                                CELL PHONE & HOT SPOT               81.47

                                                                                          CELL PHONE & HOT SPOT               60.74

                                                                                          PHONES, IPADS, CAMERAS              81.47

                                                                                          PHONES, IPADS, CAMERAS              60.74

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                UTILITY SHOP CLEAN OUT              20.79

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    655.74

                                          ANIXTER INC                                     WIRE, ELBOW, BRACKET               399.25

                                                                                          ELBOW 35KV LOADBREAK             2,192.00

                                                                                          Light fixtrues/Globe            34,423.92

                                                                                          CLAMP WEDGE, WIRE, FUSE            239.50

                                                                                          CLAMP WEDGE WIRE FUSE LINK         271.50

                                                                                          ROADWAY LUMINAIRE                1,639.80

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS               1,138.23

16



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:     9

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023               1,334.73

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS         120.00

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                   45.00

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2       1,912.17

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    79.69

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           76.79

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            50.60

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            44.80

                                          PREMIER TRUCK GROUP                             COOLANT LEAK REPAIRS             2,300.36

                                          KMEA - MID-STATES                               Sub Transformer Labor           36,154.69

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN       2,375.80

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          21.00

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         134.54

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          30.36

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                             1,079.78

                                          GRAYBAR ELECTRONIC COMPANY, INC.                Class 4 40 foot                 14,626.08

                                                                                          Class 4 30 foot                  6,881.49

                                                                                          Tax                              2,096.99

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          372.10

                                          EASYICE LLC                                     ICE BIN REPAIRS REPLACED P         416.07

                                          CITY OF GARDEN CITY, KANSAS                     TRANSFORMER PURCHASE           150,000.00

                                                                                          Load Transformer in GC           2,600.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         316,918.18

 

SEWER ADMINISTRATION   SEWER              SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    374.14

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS                 255.29

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023                 234.86

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS           9.81

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                    9.81

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2         378.36

                                          POSTALOCITY.COM                                 POSTAGE - UTILITY BILLING          900.00

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN         304.45

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          12.78

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN           3.58_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,483.08

 

WWTP OPERATIONS        SEWER              CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                    3,135.02

                                          FAMILY CENTER FARM & HOME                       NOZZLE ADJUSTABLE METAL             13.78

                                                                                          CATTLE PANEL 6 GAL                  55.98

                                                                                          DUAL SIDED BRUSH & MICE GL          14.99

                                                                                          CATTLE PANEL 6GA                    27.99

                                                                                          DISCONNECT, CONDUIT, MALE           46.63

                                          MISSION COMMUNICATIONS LLC                      WATER TOWER SERVICE PACKAG       1,965.60

                                          WAL-MART CAPITAL ONE                            LAUNDRY SOAP                        34.71

                                          GENERATOR SERVICES INC                          6 GALLON ROTELLA T MOTOR O       1,032.08

                                          PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES INC                    ANALYTICAL SERVICES                538.40

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                SLUDGE HALL OFF                  2,165.52

                                                                                          REFUSE                              75.30

                                                                                          SLUDGE HAUL OFF                  2,156.06

                                                                                          SLUDGE HAUL OFF                  2,147.40

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                     98.63

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS                 342.05

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023                 280.71

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2         478.63

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    31.90

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           30.74

17



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:    10

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            20.26

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            17.93

                                          WATERS HARDWARE                                 BOLT, TRHEADCUT, DRILL SET          18.88

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN         793.00

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN           4.20

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          33.08

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN           9.32

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          148.95

                                                                                          PASSWORD KEEPER                      1.66_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          15,719.40

 

SEWER COLLECTION       SEWER              CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                        5.37

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                       51.85

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                       23.47

                                                                                          UTILITY BILLS                      303.81

                                          FIRST OPTION BANK                               TOLL FEES                           10.00

                                          KANSAS ONE CALL SYSTEM INC                      OCT 2023 - LOCATES                  38.40

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                UTILITY SHOP CLEAN OUT              20.79

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    458.82

                                          KWIKOM COMMUNICATIONS                           SEWER PLANT INTERNET                90.00

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS                 290.84

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023                 288.79

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS           9.37

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                    9.37

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2         464.95

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                               183.21_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,249.04

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       REFUSE             WASTE MANAGEMENT                                CITY WIDE CLEANUP                  872.97

                                                                                          CURBSIDE SERVICES               31,834.53_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          32,707.50

 

LIBRARY                LIBRARY            FIRST OPTION BANK                               FOOD                                55.32

                                                                                          SPECIAL PROJECT SUPPLIES            28.43

                                                                                          FOOD FOR SPECIAL PROJECT            30.16

                                                                                          SPECIAL PROJECT SUPPLIES            19.98

                                                                                          SPECIAL PROJECT SUPPLIES             2.76

                                                                                          FOOD FOR SPECIAL PROJECT            11.23

                                          T MOBILE                                        HOT SPOTS                           62.10

                                                                                          HOT SPOTS - LIBRARY                 62.30

                                          DUNCAN TREASURES                                LIBRARY SHIRT FUNDRAISER           300.00

                                          GATEWAY GARAGE FLOORS                           GRIND AND SEAL FLOOR COAT        7,738.50_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           8,310.78

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       INDUSTRIAL PROMOTI CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                       40.22

                                          BRADLEY AIR CONDITIONING & HEATING              FURNACE REPAIR - 500 MAIN          329.52

                                          THE GROUND GUYS OF OLATHE                       CHRISTMAS DECOR - 2023           6,777.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           7,146.74

 

PARKS & CEMETERIES     SPECIAL PARK & REC CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              UTILITY BILLS                       54.18_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:              54.18

 

STREET AND ALLEYS      STREET IMPROVEMENT MIAMI LUMBER INC.                               2X8-10 #2 STD & BTR                 96.70

                                          KILLOUGH CONSTRUCTION INC                       PLANT MIX                          278.72

                                                                                          PLANT MIX - 10/03                  556.10

                                                                                          PLANT MIX - 10/11                  158.79

18



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:    11

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

                                                                                                                     _______________

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,090.31

 

CABIN                  TOURISM            KANSAS GAS SERVICE                              GAS SERVICES                        46.99

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                              57.18

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    393.84

                                          WINGERT SIGN COMPANY LLC                        NOVEMBER 2023 BILLBOARD RE       1,650.00

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                                58.50

                                          DISCOVER VINTAGE AMERICA                        SEPTEMBER 2023 1/10 PAGE A         206.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           2,412.51

 

COURSE OPERATIONS      GOLF COURSE        FIRST OPTION BANK                               FOOD FOR CLUBHOUSE RESALE          107.73

                                                                                          FOOD FOR CLUBHOUSE RESALE            2.95

                                                                                          FOOD FOR CLUBHOUSE RESALE            3.85

                                                                                          FOOD FOR CLUBHOUSE RESALE            3.10

                                                                                          FOOD FOR CLUBHOUSE RESALE           19.45

                                                                                          FOOD FOR CLUBHOUSE RESALE           13.50

                                                                                          FOOD FOR CLUBHOUSE RESALE            6.75

                                                                                          TURF WORKS CONFERENCE              393.17

                                                                                          ICE BAGS                            46.86

                                                                                          GOLF CABLE SERVICES                137.09

                                                                                          FURNACE FILTERS                     64.13

                                                                                          FURNACE FILTERS                     34.74

                                                                                          LOAN 19650 - NOVEMBER 2023         612.55

                                                                                          LOAN 19650 - NOVEMBER 2023         247.99

                                                                                          LOAN 19514 - NOVEMBER 2023       3,135.11

                                                                                          LOAN 19514 - NOVEMBER 2023         917.93

                                          FAMILY CENTER FARM & HOME                       TIRE 13X5.0  TURF SAVER             27.99

                                          KANSAS DEPT OF REVENUE                          GOLF - OCTOBER SALES TAX           295.34

                                                                                          GOLF - OCTOBER SALES TAX           253.14

                                                                                          GOLF - OCTOBER SALES TAX         1,096.96

                                          MIAMI LUMBER INC.                               FACED INSULATION LINEAL FT          89.68

                                          WYCOFF'S LOCKSMITHING                           FLACE PLATE 6 WAY LATCH             17.30

                                          MIDWEST DISTRIBUTORS                            BEER                               168.45

                                          RURAL WATER DIST. #2                            RURAL WATER SERVICE                 42.97

                                          WAL-MART CAPITAL ONE                            BUNS & VEGGIES                      95.38

                                                                                          SPONGES                              9.60

                                                                                          SPRAY PAINT                         34.90

                                          OIL PATCH PUMP & SUPPLY INC                     CAP PVC SCH 40 4" SLIP              13.00

                                          TURFWERKS                                       SPRINKLER HEADS                  3,437.82

                                          VAN WALL                                        STATIONARY KNIFE                   127.64

                                                                                          FRAME, GRASS CATC                  459.86

                                                                                          STATIONARY KNIFE                   127.54

                                          CRAWFORD SALES COMPANY                          BEER                               240.95

                                                                                          BEER                               370.50

                                          DISH NETWORK                                    CABLE SERVICES                     137.10

                                                                                          CABLE SERVICES                     137.10

                                          M&M GOLF CARS LLC                               GOLF CARS                          648.00

                                          PROFESSIONAL TURF PRODUCTS LP                   BRUSH, SEAL, BALLJOINTS, R         752.42

                                                                                          TANK HYDRAULIC                     500.13

                                                                                          SALSCO ROLLER                    8,500.00

                                          REINDERS INC                                    CENTER CUT BENTRGRASS              294.96

                                          WASTE MANAGEMENT                                REFUSE                             119.42

                                          SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP                          GOOGLE SOFTWARE                    590.75

                                          GREATLIFE WARSAW LLC                            OCT 2023 MONTHLY CONSULTIN         416.00

                                                                                          NOVEMBER 2023 - CONSULTING         416.00

                                          MFA OIL COMPANY                                 RED DIESEL FUEL - GOLF COU         399.38

19



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:    12

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

                                          KPERS                                           11/17/2023 - KPERS                 327.87

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023                 283.14

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS          12.50

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                   12.50

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2         888.81

                                          EVERGY                                          UTILITY BILLS                    1,028.44

                                          SYSCO KANSAS CITY, INC.                         RANCH DRESSING RETURN               19.72-

                                          NITEL, INC.                                     PHONE & INTERNET                    63.65

                                          NEXTIVA, INC.                                   PHONE & INTERNET SERVICES           61.36

                                          PAYCHEX                                         11/17 - PAYROLL SERVICES            40.40

                                                                                          PAYROLL SERVICES - 11/03            35.81

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN       1,083.08

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN           8.40

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          44.12

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          12.44

                                          BRIGHTSPEED                                     PHONE & INTERNET                   112.85

                                                                                          PHONE SERVICES                     112.85

                                          WEX BANK                                        FUEL                                35.82

                                          INFINITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES                    FULLY MANAGED IT SERVICES          297.34

                                          SAM INSCORE'S CONSTRUCTION                      FROST FREE HYDRANT FULE PU       1,535.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          31,543.84

 

WWTP OPERATIONS        CIP - SEWER        BG CONSULTANTS INC                              #36 - 20-1414L WWTP IMPROV       1,157.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:           1,157.00

 

STREETS & ALLEYS       CIP - STREET PROJE BG CONSULTANTS INC                              23-1022L - 11/05/2023 BROW         552.00

                                          KILLOUGH CONSTRUCTION INC                       PHASE 3 - 10/31/23             668,804.10

                                                                                          STREET IMPROVEMENTS             20,000.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:         689,356.10

 

PARKS & CEMETERIES     CIP - SPECIAL PROJ BG CONSULTANTS INC                              SOUTH LEVEE LOOPS               37,485.00_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          37,485.00

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  CITY OF OSAWATOMIE                              HSA MATCH - NOVEMBER 2023        3,280.18

                                          KANSAS DEPT OF REVENUE                          NOVEMBER 2023                    4,560.92

                                                                                          NOVEMBER 2023                    5,382.80

                                          KANSAS PAYMENT CENTER                           NOVEMBER 2023 - CHILD SUPP       1,664.61

                                                                                          NOVEMBER 2023 - CHILD SUPP       1,664.61

                                          KPERS                                           KPERS LIFE - 11/01/2023            116.73

                                                                                          KPERS FP & F  - 11/17/2023       2,692.80

                                                                                          11/17/2023 - KPERS               4,750.90

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023               4,655.86

                                                                                          11/03/2023 - KPERS KP&F          2,155.08

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS       1,279.13

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                1,333.18

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2      38,570.57

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN      14,793.06

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         462.02

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         301.06

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN          92.34

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         566.12

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         296.72

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         175.38

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         124.31-

                                          BANKERS FIDELITY                                NOVEMBER 2023 - CANCER INS         480.70_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          89,150.46

 
20



12-07-2023 08:21 AM                     C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1                         PAGE:    13

DEPARTMENT             FUND               VENDOR NAME                                     DESCRIPTION                        AMOUNT_

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  KPERS                                           KPERS FP & F  - 11/17/2023       8,609.43

                                                                                          11/17/2023 - KPERS               3,435.10

                                                                                          KPERS - 11/03/2023               3,151.82

                                                                                          11/03/2023 - KPERS KP&F          6,890.24

                                          VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER                           11/17 - VANTAGEPOINT TRANS         202.82

                                                                                          IMCA - 11/03/2023                  207.96

                                          EFTPS                                           PAYROLL TAXES - NOVEMBER 2      11,546.65

                                          VAUGHANFIRE LLC                                 NOV 2032 - MONTHLY SERVICE       2,500.00

                                          BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN      18,500.19

                                          PRINCIPLE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY                NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         138.60

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         940.44

                                                                                          NOV 2023 - LIFE,VISION,DEN         224.78_

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          56,348.03

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL       CAFETERIA 125      BLUE CROSS & BLUE SHIELD                        NOVEMBER 2023 - MEDICAL IN      21,930.45-

                                                                                                          TOTAL:          21,930.45-

 

                                   =============== FUND TOTALS ================

                                   01   GENERAL OPERATING            113,260.51

                                   02   WATER                        102,508.45

                                   03   ELECTRIC                     576,507.67

                                   04   SEWER                         20,451.52

                                   05   REFUSE                        32,707.50

                                   06   LIBRARY                        8,310.78

                                   09   INDUSTRIAL PROMOTION           7,146.74

                                   11   SPECIAL PARK & RECREATION         54.18

                                   12   STREET IMPROVEMENTS            1,090.31

                                   13   TOURISM                        2,412.51

                                   18   GOLF COURSE                   31,543.84

                                   24   CIP - SEWER                    1,157.00

                                   25   CIP - STREET PROJECT         689,356.10

                                   29   CIP - SPECIAL PROJECTS        37,485.00

                                   31   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS            145,498.49

                                   32   CAFETERIA 125                 21,930.45CR

                                   --------------------------------------------

                                                GRAND TOTAL:       1,747,560.15

                                   --------------------------------------------

TOTAL PAGES:   13

21



12-07-2023 08:21 AM C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   - 2 0 2 3 - 1 1 PAGE:    14

SELECTION CRITERIA

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

SELECTION OPTIONS

VENDOR SET:       01-OSAWATOMIE KS

VENDOR: All

CLASSIFICATION:   All

BANK CODE: All

ITEM DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ITEM AMOUNT: 99,999,999.00CR THRU  99,999,999.00

GL POST DATE: 11/01/2023 THRU 11/30/2023

CHECK DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PAYROLL SELECTION

PAYROLL EXPENSES: YES

EXPENSE TYPE:     GROSS

CHECK DATE:       11/01/2023 THRU 11/30/2023

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PRINT OPTIONS

PRINT DATE: None

SEQUENCE: By Department

DESCRIPTION: Distribution

GL ACCTS: NO

REPORT TITLE: C O U N C I L   R E P O R T   -   2 0 2 3 - 1 1

SIGNATURE LINES:  0

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PACKET OPTIONS

INCLUDE REFUNDS:  YES

INCLUDE OPEN ITEM:NO

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

22



Re: John Brown and South Levee Loop BG Project No. 23-1109L
Osawatomie, Kansas

Design Phase Services

Lump Sum 

Amount % Complete Subtotal

Design Services (Lump Sum Fee)….....................................................214,200.00$ 83.25% 178,321.50$  
178,321.50$ 

Professional Services Billed this Invoice………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…64,152.90$   

Total Professional Services Billed Thru this Invoice………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…178,321.50$ 

Contract Value of Professional Services Remaining………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…35,878.50$   

Reimbursable Expenses

None this month………………………………………………………..…….…………………….… -$              
Subtotal #2 = -$  

Total Reimbursable Expenses Billed Thru this Invoice………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…-$             

Total Amount of Services Complete (Subtotals #1 + #2)…………………………………178,321.50$  
Less Previous Amount Billed (Thru Invoices:  #9)…………………………………………………………..171,360.00$  
Total Amount Owed this Invoice………………………………………………………….. 6,961.50$     
Plus Previous Invoices Unpaid (none )…………………………………………………….. -$  
Total Amount Owed to Date………………………………………………………………. 6,961.50$     

6,961.50$     

For questions, please contact me at 785-749-4474 or diane.rosebaugh@bgcons.com.

Sincerely,

Diane Rosebaugh, P.E.
Project Manager | Associate Principal

 ----------------------------------Invoice for Consulting Services-----------------------------------

This Invoice is for services performed during the month of November 2023 as follows:

Subtotal #1 =

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE THIS INVOICE

* by email only  *

City of Osawatomie December 6, 2023

Attn: Bret Glendening, Deputy City Manager

439 Main Street
INVOICE #10

Osawatomie, KS 66064

 1405 Wakarusa Drive  •  Lawrence, Kansas 66049

T: 785.749.4474  •  Web: www.bgcons.com23



Re: Brown Street Improvements (16th to 18th Street) BG Project No. 22-1139L
Main Street Terrace (18th Street to 16th Street) / Walnut Avenue (6th Street to 4th Street)
18th Street (Main Street to Brown Avenue) / Brown Avenue (12th Street to 7th Street)
6th Street (Lincoln Avenue to Kelly Avenue)

Osawatomie, Kansas

Design Phase Services Subtotal
Design, Bid, and Const. Eng. Services (Lump Sum Fee)*………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…773,000.00$    100.00% 773,000.00$    

Subtotal #1 = 773,000.00$    

Contract Value of Design Phase Services Remaining………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…-$                 

*Includes Supplemental No. 1 dated 5/26/2023

Construction Observation

Observation Services (Not to Exceed)………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…120,000.00$    
Principal II………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…0.0 hrs @ 226.00 /hr$     -$  

Engineer IV………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…0.0 hrs @ 144.00 /hr$     -$  

Engineer II………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…0.0 hrs @ 130.00 /hr$     -$  

Engineer I………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…0.0 hrs @ 111.00 /hr$     -$  

Senior Construction Observer………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…23.5 hrs @ 120.00 /hr$     2,820.00$        

Certified Construction Observer………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…0.0 hrs @ 103.00 /hr$     -$                 

2,820.00$        

Total Construction Observation Services Billed Thru this Invoice………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…6,960.00$        

Contract Value of Construction Observation Services Remaining………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…113,040.00$    

Reimbursable Expenses

Kruger Technologies (Invoice Attached).………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…2,516.25$         
Subtotal #3 = 2,516.25$        

Total Reimbursable Expenses Thru this Invoice………………………………………………………..…….…………………….…5,569.59$        

Total Amount of Services Complete (Subtotals #1 + #2 + #3)***…………………………………785,529.59$     
Less Previous Amount Billed (Thru Invoices:  #20)…………………………………………………………..780,193.34$     
Total Amount Owed this Invoice………………………………………………………….. 5,336.25$         
Plus Previous Invoices Unpaid…………………………………………………….. -$  
Total Amount Owed to Date………………………………………………………………. 5,336.25$         

5,336.25$         

For questions, please contact me at 785-749-4474 or diane.rosebaugh@bgcons.com.

Sincerely,

Diane Rosebaugh, P.E.
Project Manager | Associate Principal

* by email only  *

City of Osawatomie November 6, 2023

Attn: Bret Glendening, Deputy City Manager

439 Main Street
INVOICE #21

 ----------------------------------Invoice for Consulting Services-----------------------------------

This Invoice is for services performed during the month of October 2023 as follows:

Lump Sum 

Amount

% Complete 

Progress

Subtotal #2 =

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE THIS INVOICE

 1405 Wakarusa Drive  •  Lawrence, Kansas 66049

T: 785.749.4474  •  Web: www.bgcons.com24



Invoice

Invoice Date: 11/11/2023

Invoice #: 10407

Bill To:
BG Consultants Inc.
Accounts Payable
Re: 2022 Street Rehab 22-1139L
1405 Wakarusa Drive
Lawrence, KS 66049

8271 Melrose Drive
Lenexa, KS 66214

Project/ PO Number

Due Date: 12/11/2023
Project: 423130C

Phone # 913-498-1114
Fax # 913-498-1116

abaar@ktionline.com
www.ktionline.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Date Description TechnicianHours/Qty Report No.Rate Amount

10/24/2023 Concrete Testing (Cancellation) MCB2 65.00 130.00
10/24/2023 Transportation, per trip MCB1 50.00 50.00
10/26/2023 Concrete Testing MCB3.25 .00965.00 211.25
10/26/2023 Compressive Strength Specimen -

Concrete - C39
MCB5 .01020.00 100.00

10/26/2023 Transportation, per trip MCB1 50.00 50.00
10/27/2023 Sample Retrieval MCB2 .01065.00 130.00
10/27/2023 Transportation, per trip MCB1 50.00 50.00
11/6/2023 Concrete Testing KB2 .01165.00 130.00
11/6/2023 Compressive Strength Specimen -

Concrete - C39
KB9 .01220.00 180.00

11/6/2023 Transportation, per trip KB1 50.00 50.00
11/7/2023 Concrete Testing KB3.5 .01365.00 227.50
11/7/2023 Compressive Strength Specimen -

Concrete - C39
KB5 .01420.00 100.00

11/7/2023 Transportation, per trip KB1 50.00 50.00
11/8/2023 Concrete Testing KB3.5 .01565.00 227.50
11/8/2023 Compressive Strength Specimen -

Concrete - C39
KB5 .01650.00 250.00

11/8/2023 Transportation, per trip KB1 50.00 50.00
11/9/2023 Sample Retrieval KB2 .01665.00 130.00
11/9/2023 Transportation, per trip KB1 50.00 50.00

Professional Engineer - Report Review 2 150.00 300.00
Report Generation 1 50.00 50.00

$2,516.25

$2,516.25

$0.00

25



26



27



ACTION ITEM SUMMARY Item Number: 
Date: December 6, 2023 

Building Official From: Keith Myers 

RE: Condemnation Resolution 1193, 1194 & 1195 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that City Council approve the three Condemnation Resolutions 

DETAILS: The City of Osawatomie has identified the following properties as candidates for condemnation and 
demolition. Each property is currently vacant. 

719 5th St. 
- This property is currently vacant, and the utilities have not been active since August 2023. Proper permits have

been obtained on this property. The contractor is currently changing out the electric service and is in the process
of repairing the entire structure.

321 Mill St. 
- This property is currently vacant. The structural stability of this home has been removed due to the owners

intending on remodeling the structure. The structure has been stripped down to the studs, removing all the
windows, plaster, and other misc. items. The owners have obtained proper permits and provided engineering
details on how to repair the structure's foundation. This project has taken longer due to waiting on the
engineers report.

1116 4th St. 
- This property is currently vacant, and the water is not turned on. Proper permits have been obtained on this

property. The siding is currently being replaced by the owner of the property. This home is no longer exposed to
the elements. The owner is currently repairing the decayed structural members in the interior of the home.

700 Pacific and 904 Chestnut have been demolished. 

Related Statute / City Ordinances N/A 
Line Item Code/Description N/A 
Available Budget: N/A 

28



RESOLUTION NO 1193 

A RESOLUTION FINDING THAT THE STRUCTURE LOCATED AT IDA 
MAY SINKAY’S ADDN OSAW, BLOCK 1, LOT 4, SECTION 11 TOWNSHIP 
18 RANGE 22. IN THE CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, MIAMI COUNTY, 
KANSAS; COMMONLY KNOWN AND REFERRED TO AS 1116 4TH ST, 
OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS, IS UNSAFE OR DANGEROUS AND DIRECTING 
THAT THE STRUCTURE BE REMOVED AND THE PREMISES MADE SAFE 
AND SECURE. 

WHEREAS, the Enforcing Officer of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, did on the 28th day 
of September, 2023, file with the Governing Body of said City a statement in writing that the 
certain structure, hereinafter described are either abandoned or unsafe and dangerous; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body did by Resolution No. 1171, dated the 28th day of 
September, 2023 fix the time and place of a hearing at which the owner, his or her agent, and 
lienholders, any occupants and all other parties in interest of such structure would appear and show 
cause why such structure should not be condemned and ordered repaired or demolished and 
provided for giving notice thereof as provided by law; and, 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 1171 was published in the official City newspaper on the 4th 
& 11th day of October, 2023, and a copy of said resolution was served upon all persons entitled 
thereto as provided by law; and, 

WHEREAS, on the 14th day of December, 2023, the Governing Body did conduct the 
hearing scheduled in Resolution No. 1171 and took evidence from the following:  The Enforcing 
Officer on behalf of the City (Keith Myers). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS, THAT:  

1. The Governing Body hereby finds that the structure located at Ida May Sinkay’s Addn
Osaw, Block 1, Lot 4, section 11 Township 18 Range 22. In the City of Osawatomie, Miami
County, Kansas, commonly known and referred to as 1116 4th St., Osawatomie, Kansas,
is unsafe and dangerous based on the following findings:

a. The structure is dilapidated and in need of immediate repair.
b. Rotten or damaged facia, and/or soffit.
c. Damaged or missing gutter drain.
d. Unmaintained weeds, trees
e. Possible rodent infestation

29



 
2. The owner of such structure is hereby directed to complete the renovation or the 
removal of the property by July 1, 2024. Additionally, the Owner of this property shall: 1.) 
pay all back taxes and special assessments that are levied and outstanding against the 
property; and 2.) deposit with the City Clerk, an irrevocable letter of credit naming the 
City of Osawatomie as the beneficiary and shall have an expiration date of not less than 
one year from the date of this Resolution’s adoption to be used to pay for the demolition of 
the subject property. If the subject property is brought to current building codes as adopted 
by the City of Osawatomie by July 1, 2024, the irrevocable letter of credit will be released 
by the City of Osawatomie.  
 
3. If the owner fails to commence the repair of the structure within the time stated herein, 
or any additional time granted by the Governing Body, or fails to diligently prosecute the 
same until the work is completed, the Governing Body will cause the structure to be razed 
and removed and the costs of razing and removing, less salvage if any, shall be collected 
in the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-1755, and amendments thereto or shall be assessed 
as a special assessment against the lot or parcel of land upon which the structure is located 
or by both, all as provided by law. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk shall cause this Resolution to be published 
once in the official city paper and a copy mailed to the owners, agents, lienholders, occupants and 
other parties of interest. 
  
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas this 14th 
day of December, 2023, a majority being in favor thereof. 
 
APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor. 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Nick Hampson 
 Mayor 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Tammy Seamands 
City Clerk 
 

30



 
RESOLUTION NO 1194 

 
 

A RESOLUTION FINDING THAT THE STRUCTURE LOCATED AT, LT 20 
BLK 91 ELLENSVILLE ADDN SECTION 11 TOWNSHIP 18 RANGE 22. IN 
THE CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, MIAMI COUNTY, KANSAS; COMMONLY 
KNOWN AND REFERRED TO AS 719 5TH ST. OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS, IS 
UNSAFE OR DANGEROUS AND DIRECTING THAT THE STRUCTURE BE 
REMOVED AND THE PREMISES MADE SAFE AND SECURE. 

   

WHEREAS, the Enforcing Officer of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, did on the 28th day 
of September, 2023, file with the Governing Body of said City a statement in writing that the 
certain structure, hereinafter described are either abandoned or unsafe and dangerous; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body did by Resolution No. 1171, dated the 28th day of 
September, 2023 fix the time and place of a hearing at which the owner, his or her agent, and 
lienholders, any occupants and all other parties in interest of such structure would appear and show 
cause why such structure should not be condemned and ordered repaired or demolished and 
provided for giving notice thereof as provided by law; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 1171 was published in the official City newspaper on the 4th 
& 11th day of October, 2023, and a copy of said resolution was served upon all persons entitled 
thereto as provided by law; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of December, 2022, the Governing Body did conduct the 
hearing scheduled in Resolution No. 1171 and took evidence from the following:  The Enforcing 
Officer on behalf of the City (Keith Myers). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS, THAT:  

 
1. The Governing Body hereby finds that the structure located at, lt 20 blk 91 Ellensville 
addn section 11 township 18 range 22. In the City of Osawatomie, Miami County, Kansas, 
commonly known and referred to as 719 5th St., Osawatomie, Kansas, is unsafe and 
dangerous based on the following findings: 
  
a. The structure is dilapidated and in need of immediate repair. 
b. Unsafe Structure  
c. Damaged front porch 
d. Rotten or damaged facia, and/or soffit. 
e. Damaged and or rotten/missing windows 
f. Missing siding 
g. Possible rodent infestation 

31



 
2. The owner of such structure is hereby directed to complete the renovation or the 
removal of the property by July 1, 2024. Additionally, the Owner of this property shall: 1.) 
pay all back taxes and special assessments that are levied and outstanding against the 
property; and 2.) deposit with the City Clerk, an irrevocable letter of credit naming the 
City of Osawatomie as the beneficiary and shall have an expiration date of not less than 
one year from the date of this Resolution’s adoption to be used to pay for the demolition of 
the subject property. If the subject property is brought to current building codes as adopted 
by the City of Osawatomie by July 1, 2024, the irrevocable letter of credit will be released 
by the City of Osawatomie.  
 
3. If the owner fails to commence the repair of the structure within the time stated herein, 
or any additional time granted by the Governing Body, or fails to diligently prosecute the 
same until the work is completed, the Governing Body will cause the structure to be razed 
and removed and the costs of razing and removing, less salvage if any, shall be collected 
in the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-1755, and amendments thereto or shall be assessed 
as a special assessment against the lot or parcel of land upon which the structure is located 
or by both, all as provided by law. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk shall cause this Resolution to be published 
once in the official city paper and a copy mailed to the owners, agents, lienholders, occupants and 
other parties of interest. 
  
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas this 14th 
day of December, 2023, a majority being in favor thereof. 
 
APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor. 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Nick Hampson 
 Mayor 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Tammy Seamands 
City Clerk 
 

32



 
RESOLUTION NO 1195 

 
 

A RESOLUTION FINDING THAT THE STRUCTURE LOCATED AT. LT 6 
BLK 2 BLAINES ADDN SECTION 11 TOWNSHIP 18 RANGE 22. IN THE 
CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, MIAMI COUNTY, KANSAS; COMMONLY 
KNOWN AND REFERRED TO AS 321 MILL, OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS, IS 
UNSAFE OR DANGEROUS AND DIRECTING THAT THE STRUCTURE BE 
REMOVED AND THE PREMISES MADE SAFE AND SECURE. 

   

WHEREAS, the Enforcing Officer of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, did on the 28th day 
of September, 2023, file with the Governing Body of said City a statement in writing that the 
certain structure, hereinafter described are either abandoned or unsafe and dangerous; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body did by Resolution No. 1171, dated the 28th day of 
September, 2023 fix the time and place of a hearing at which the owner, his or her agent, and 
lienholders, any occupants and all other parties in interest of such structure would appear and show 
cause why such structure should not be condemned and ordered repaired or demolished and 
provided for giving notice thereof as provided by law; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 1171 was published in the official City newspaper on the 4th 
& 11th day of October, 2023, and a copy of said resolution was served upon all persons entitled 
thereto as provided by law; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of December, 2022, the Governing Body did conduct the 
hearing scheduled in Resolution No. 1171 and took evidence from the following:  The Enforcing 
Officer on behalf of the City (Keith Myers). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS, THAT:  

 
1. The Governing Body hereby finds that the structure located at, Lt 6 blk 2 Blaine’s addn 
section 11 township 18 range 22. In the City of Osawatomie, Miami County, Kansas, 
commonly known and referred to as 321 Mill, Osawatomie, Kansas, is unsafe and 
dangerous based on the following findings: 
  
a. The structure is dilapidated and in need of immediate repair. 
b. Unsafe Structure  
c. Rotten or damaged facia, and/or soffit. 
d. Damaged or missing gutter drain. 
e. Damaged and or rotten/missing doors 
f. Damaged and or rotten/missing windows 
g. Interior damage 

33



h. Unmaintained weeds, trees 
i. Possible rodent infestation 
j. Unhabitable structure 
k. Foundation Issues 
 
2. The owner of such structure is hereby directed to complete the renovation or the 
removal of the property by July 1, 2024. Additionally, the Owner of this property shall: 1.) 
pay all back taxes and special assessments that are levied and outstanding against the 
property; and 2.) deposit with the City Clerk, an irrevocable letter of credit naming the 
City of Osawatomie as the beneficiary and shall have an expiration date of not less than 
one year from the date of this Resolution’s adoption to be used to pay for the demolition of 
the subject property. If the subject property is brought to current building codes as adopted 
by the City of Osawatomie by July 1, 2024, the irrevocable letter of credit will be released 
by the City of Osawatomie.  
 
3. If the owner fails to commence the repair of the structure within the time stated herein, 
or any additional time granted by the Governing Body, or fails to diligently prosecute the 
same until the work is completed, the Governing Body will cause the structure to be razed 
and removed and the costs of razing and removing, less salvage if any, shall be collected 
in the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-1755, and amendments thereto or shall be assessed 
as a special assessment against the lot or parcel of land upon which the structure is located 
or by both, all as provided by law. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk shall cause this Resolution to be published 
once in the official city paper and a copy mailed to the owners, agents, lienholders, occupants and 
other parties of interest. 
  
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas this 14th 
day of December, 2023, a majority being in favor thereof. 
 
APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor. 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Nick Hampson 
 Mayor 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Tammy Seamands 
City Clerk 
 

34



RE: Resolution 1196 – Resolution relating to the review and acceptance of City Council Policies 
101 through 109. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1196 relating to the review and acceptance of City 
Council Policies 101 through 109. 

DETAILS: Council Policies should be reviewed at the end of every calendar year so that the City 
Council has an opportunity to review, amend, or rescind previously passed policies. The routine 
we have set is to start review at the first December meeting take any recommended changes and 
comments and bring suggested changes back for City Council consideration at the first meeting in 
January of the following year.   

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY Item Number: 10.A
Date: December 6, 2023 

City Manager From: Bret Glendening

35



RESOLUTION NO. 1196 

BY THE CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS 

A RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE OF CITY 
COUNCIL POLICIES 101 THROUGH 110 

WHEREAS, the City of Osawatomie through its City Council established City Council Policies 
101 through 109; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council through the adoption of Resolution 787 agreed to a regular review 
of said policies the last review being conducted in 2022 and recognized in Resolution 1080; and  

WHEREAS, the policies have been provided to the City Council for their review during the month 
of December. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS: 

SECTION ONE:  That the City Council has reviewed the City Council Policies, made any 
recommended changes to City Staff, and those changes (if any) are included in those policies and included 
in Attachment A to this resolution. 

SECTION TWO:  The City Council hereby approve Council Policies 101 through 110. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, this 11th 
day of January, 2024, a majority voting in favor of. 

APPROVED and signed by the Mayor. 

____________________________________ 
Nick Hampson, Mayor 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Tammy Seamands, City Clerk 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



ACTION ITEM SUMMARY Item Number: 10.B.
Date: 12/7/2023 

City Manager From: Bret Glendening 

RE: Resolution 1197 – Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with BG Consultants for 
Construction Observation & Engineering Services for 6th Street. 

RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council approve Resolution 1197 – Resolution authorizing the Mayor to 
enter into a contract with BG Consultants for the design and construction engineering services for the new water 
treatment plant. 

DETAILS: Due to the complexity and size of the 6th Street Project, and the amount of money that we are investing 
in it, staff believes it is prudent to engage our City Engineer to assist with the construction observation of the 
project. This is a NOT TO EXCEED contract value, so we will only get billed for the amount of time that is actually 
used. On the construction observation side, the NTE amount is $350,000 and the construction engineering 
portion of the agreement is a NTE amount of $50,000. 

I believe that we will utilize these services mostly when the street is being constructed. Our Utility Director is 
supervising the construction of the water main, and I am more than comfortable with our Public Works Director 
and her staff supervising the installation of the stormwater system and related open ditches that will be 
constructed as part of the project as well. 

Related Statute / City Ordinances 1175 
Line-Item Code/Description N/A 
Available Budget: N/A 

82



RESOLUTION NO. 1197 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN AN AGREEMENT 
WITH BG CONSULTANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION OBSERVATION AND 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 6TH STREET RECONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body for the City of Osawatomie, by Resolution 1175, awarded the 
construction contract for the 6th Street to Killough Construction; and 

 
WHEREAS, the size and complexity of the reconstruction project on 6th Street necessitates 

additional support for construction observation; and   
 
WHEREAS, the city council and city staff recognize the investment being made in 6th Street 

warrants additional support to ensure the investment being made is maximized; and 
 
WHEREAS, BG Consultants has served as City Engineer for at least 20 years and is qualified to 

provide construction observation and engineering services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS: 
 
SECTION ONE:   The Governing Body of Osawatomie, Kansas hereby authorizes the Mayor to 
enter into an Agreement with BG Consultants for construction observation and engineering services 
for 6th Street. The amount of funds authorized for construction observation services shall not exceed 
$350,000 and the amount authorized for construction engineering services shall not exceed 
$50,000. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, this 14th 

day of December, 2023, a majority voting in favor of. 
 
APPROVED and signed by the Mayor. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
       Nick Hampson, Mayor 

(SEAL) 
  
ATTEST: 

 
______________________________ 
Tammy Seamands, City Clerk 



Page 1 of 2 

Supplemental Agreement No. 2 

to 

AGREEMENT 

CONSULTANT-CLIENT 

between 

Osawatomie, Kansas and BG Consultants, Inc. 

for 

2022/2023 Street Improvements 

Main St. Terr. (18th to 16th); Walnut Ave. (6th to 4th); 18th St. (Main St. to Brown Ave.); Brown Ave (12th to 

7th); 6th St. (Lincoln to Kelly) – Osawatomie, Kansas 

The purpose of this Supplement No. 2 is to define additional professional services requested by 

Osawatomie, Kansas, hereinafter called the “CLIENT”, to be provided by BG Consultants, Inc., hereinafter 

called the “CONSULTANT”.  This agreement is a supplement to the AGREEMENT CONSULTANT-CLIENT for 

the 2022/2023 Street Improvements Main St. Terr. (18th to 16th); Walnut Ave. (6th to 4th); 18th St. 

(Main St. to Brown Ave.); Brown Ave (12th to 7th); 6th St. (Lincoln to Kelly) – Osawatomie, Kansas 

between Osawatomie, Kansas and BG Consultants, Inc. dated February 1, 2022. 

SECTION I – SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Under the terms of this Supplement No. 2, CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree to modify the Scope of 

Services to include additional services as follows: 

CONSULTANT will provide the following CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES. 

1. Assist the CLIENT with administration of the construction contract for the 6th Street Project (from

Lincoln Avenue to Kelly Avenue) which Let in 2023.

CONSULTANT will provide the following CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION SERVICES. 

1. Provide qualified personnel to assist CLIENT with construction inspection services for the 6th Street

Project (from Lincoln Avenue to Kelly Avenue) which Let in 2023.

2. The budget of hours included in this Agreement for the Construction Inspection Services is 2,640

hours of “Senior Construction Inspector” based on a construction contract time of 12 months.

SECTION II – COMPENSATION AND SCHEDULE 

For the scope of CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING services listed above, the CLIENT agrees to pay the 

CONSULTANT a lump sum fee of fifty thousand and NO/100 dollars ($50,000.00). 

For the scope of CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION services listed above, the CONSULTANT will provide 

services for a fee based on the actual hours expended at the CONSULTANT’s Discounted Hourly Rates on 

the following page, but not to exceed three-hundred and fifty thousand and NO/100 dollars ($350,000.00). 

CLIENT acknowledges and understands this fee is an estimated budget based on an estimate of possible 

volume of hours rendered by CONSULTANT during construction.  Additional compensation in excess of this 

estimated budget may be necessary depending on the actual volume of hours expended by CONSULTANT.  

CONSULTANT will notify CLIENT when actual invoicing for said services achieves approximately 75% of 

the estimated budget. 

Billing procedures and all other items pertaining to compensation are as described in the AGREEMENT. 

SECTION III – OTHER MATTERS 

It is mutually agreed and understood that all terms of the original Agreement, not specifically revised by this 

Supplement No. 2, shall remain unchanged and in full force. 

84



Page 2 of 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Supplement No. 2 on this 

 day of , 2023. 

BG Consultants, Inc. Osawatomie, Kansas 

CONSULTANT CLIENT 

By By 

    Jason Hoskinson 

Title  Corporate Secretary Title 

85



 

 

 
 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY Item Number: 10.C 
 Date:  December 8, 2023 

From:  Our City Planning  From: Mike Scanlon, Our City Planning 

 

RE: Resolution 1198 is consideration of the Planning Commission’s recommendation regarding Application 

REZ2023-02 for the rezoning of 1009 Pacific. 

RECOMMENDATION: That the city council approve Resolution 1198. 

DETAILS:  Alcove Development, LLC presented an application for the rezoning of the property at 1009 Pacific. 

That request was for the rezoning of the property from R1 to R3. A staff report accompanying this AIS and 

Resolution 1198 provides further details on the application, consideration and conditions considered by the 

Planning Commission. Also attached is the Public Hearing notices published in the Miami County Republic and 

the original application – pre publication and notification. On December 12, 2023 the Planning Commission 

recommended approval of REZ2023-02 with stipulations a-e on a vote of 5(yea)-0(no)-1(abstention) 

 

 

 

Related Statute / City Ordinances Planning and Zoning Regulations of the City of Osawatomie. 

Line Item Code/Description N/A 

Available Budget: N/A 

 

86



RESOLUTION NO. 1198 

A RESOLUTION UPHOLDING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE OSAWATOMIE 

PLANNING COMMISSION ON APPLICATION REZ2023-02 (1009 Pacific) 

WHEREAS the City published an appropriate Public Hearing notice regarding the rezoning of 

the property at 1009 Pacific (aka Swenson Early Childhood Education building); and  

WHEREAS notification was given to property owners within 200 feet of the project; and 

WHEREAS the Osawatomie Planning Commission on December 12, 2023 conducted a public 

hearing regarding Application REZ2023-02. 

WHEREAS the Osawatomie Planning Commission on December 12, 2023 then recommended 

approval of Application REZ2023-02 including stipulations a-e. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS: 

SECTION ONE: The Governing Body hereby upholds the recommendation of the Osawatomie 

Planning Commission on Application REZ2023-02 that was considered on December 12, 2023. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, this 14th 

day of December, a majority voting in favor of. 

APPROVED and signed by the mayor. 

 

                   ____________________________________ 

                        Nick Hampson, Mayor 

(SEAL)  

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Tammy Seamands, City Clerk 

87



REZONING OF 1009 PACIFIC

APPLICANT:  ALCOVE EVELOPMENT LLC

APPLICATION: REZ2023-02

88



PROPERTY HISTORY
1955
1992
1998
2015
2016

2016-2023
2023

SWENSON ELEMENTARY BUILT AT 1009 PACIFIC

RELOCATABLE CLASSROOM BUILT ON WEST SIDE OF PROPERTY

TROJAN ELEMENTARY OPENS
SWENSON BECOMES SWENSON EARLY CHILDHOOD CENTER

OLD SWENSON SOLD FOR $1 .00 TO 1009 PACIFIC LLC
(WESTMINSTER CO)

HAS REMAINED VACANT 7 YEARS - NO SERIOUS PROPOSALS 

SPRING/SUMMER ABATEMENT OF 1009 STARTED ($200K TO
DEMOLISH)

TROJAN ELEMENTARY EXPANDED AND 
SWENSON EARLY CHILDHOOD CENTER RELOCATED 

2023 SUMMER/FALL ALCOVE DEVELOPMENT LLC PRESENTS A PLAN
89



Prel iminary
discussion and

project plan.  Do
you have a

viable project?
Property

Condit ions
Grant/Tax

Credit
Funding

LOOKS VIABLE

1 2 3 4

STEPS IN THE PROCESS -- ONLY THE BEGINNING

5 6

Negotiations
with current

owner.  Can you
find a

reasonable
price given the

condit ions?
Contract for

purchase
acceptable?

YES

Is  the City open
to a Pre-

Development
Agreement so

that we can get
further down

the road?
YES

City Council
approved RES

1169
September,

2023 .

I t  starts with
Rezoning.  Is  the
publ ic open do

al lowing the
rezoning of the

property?
Application

REZ2023-02
Tonights Public

Hearing and
consideration

of the
application.

Fol lowing
rezoning you

have to
determine

TIF/RHID etc.  to
assist in the

project .
Al l  covered in

the Pre-
Development

Agreement
Resolution 1169

Depending on
the action of

the P&Z tonight
you then get to

the phase of
applying for
grants /  tax

credits none of
which can

happen unti l
you’ve done

STEPS 1-5
90



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (STIPULATIONS)

The appl ication wi l l  be in
accordance with Exhibit  A.  In

addit ion the developmen
shal l  fol low and comply with
al l  regulations and standards

of the City of Osawatomie
unless specif ical ly exempted

by the Governing Body

STRATEGY N°3

STIPULATI0N #1 STIPULATI0N #2 IPULATI0N #2STIPULATI0N #3 STIPULATI0N #2STIPULATI0N #2
Prior to the submittal  of a

bui lding permit ,  the Planning
Commission shal l  approve a

f inal  development plan.

Development of the site
shal l  be l imited to 24,426 ft .

Concurrent with the
submittal  of construction
plans,  the appl icant shal l

provide a separate copy of
the landscape plan.

Prior to the issuance of a
certif icate of occupancy,  a l l

s idewalk ramps,  and
sidewalks in the publ ic

r ight-of-way adjacent to the
property shal l  be

constructed to conform with
current publ ic sidewalk ramp
requirements,  including the

instal lat ion of truncated
domes where appl icable.

STIPULATI0N #4 STIPULATI0N #5

91



EXCERPT OF THE MINUTES OF DECEMBER 12, 2023
CITY OF OSAWATOMIE PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION

Osawatomie, Kansas. December 12, 2023. Planning Commission Meeting was held at 
Memorial Hall located at 411 11th Street, Osawatomie, KS 66064. Chairperson Will Cutburth 
called the meeting to order at 5:02 pm. Planning Commissioners present were: Mr. John 
Wastlund (arr. 5:04 pm), Mr. Brian King, Mr. Tyler Wright, Ms. Denise Bradley (arr. 5:05 
pm), and Mr. Dale Samuels. Also attending were Michael Scanlon, Our City Planning LLC. 
Public present included; Mr. Philip Reavis, Ms Joy Reavis, Ms. Sarah Markwell, Mr Derek 
Henness, Ms. Karen LaDuex, Ms. Shannon Gilmere, Ms. Emily Duncan, Mr. Wes Duncan, 
Ms. Helen Wetzel, Mr. Bryan Wetzel, Mr. Jeff Dorsett, Mr. Kevin Schasteen, Mr. Dale 
Bratton and Ms. Michelle Chester. Also attending Mr. Dustin Baker, Alcove Development 
LLC and Mr. GW Weld.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA. Approval of December 12, 2023 Agenda. Chairman 
Cutburth asked the Agenda be approved as presented. Motion made by Mr. Wright, seconded by 
Mr. King to approve the Agenda. Yeas: All.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES. The minutes of the meeting of November 14, 2023 
were made available to the Planning Commission in their packet and considered for approval. 
Chairman Cutburth moved that the minutes of the meeting of November 14, 2023 be approved, 
seconded by Ms. Bradley. Yeas: All.

PUBLIC HEARING IN REGARDS TO APPLICATION REZ2023-02 -
REZONING OF 1009 PACIFIC. Chairman Cutburth opened the public hearing at 5:04 pm and 
asked the public to share their concerns and questions about the matter of REZ2023-02 –
Rezoning of 1009 Pacific. Chairman Cutburth said any questions that can’t be answered tonight 
will be written down and responded to.

Ms. Sarah Markwell of 924 Pacific Ave. said her two concerns were:
1. Would the asbestos be abated? and
2. What’s the impact on property values and property taxes because of the 

proposed development?

Mr. Scanlon responded that Mr. Baker will address the asbestos in his presentation. Mr. Scanlon 
said, however, that asbestos abatement would occur in the normal course of construction. Mr. 
Scanlon also stated that given the condition of the property currently he would expect the 
proposed project would increase the condition and value of it. That increase in value could have 
an impact on surrounding property values that are positive – that would be the expectation. Mr.

92



Scanlon stated it’s the County Appraiser that determines values and not the City. The City levies 
taxes on properties based on overall values in the community.

Mr. Philip Reavis of 116 14th St. also stated he had a concern about asbestos and he 
understood it would be taken care of. Mr. Reavis also asked about Historic Tax Credits and 
whether or not the school was currently considered a historic structure.

Mr. Scanlon responded that it was not yet registered as a historic structure but would in time. 
That designation then allows the developer to seek Historic Tax Credits (HTC). Mr. Scanlon 
stated that Mr. Baker would cover the HTC in his presentation.

There being no further public comment the Public Hearing was closed at 5:12 pm.

REVIEW AND MAKE RECOMMENDATION ON APPLICATION REZ2023-02 -
REZONING OF 1009 PACIFIC.

Staff Presentation:Mr. Scanlon stated that there were two handouts available tonight.

1. The first is the presentation he will give titled “REZONING OF 1009 PACIFIC."
2. The second is the City’s Staff Report on Application: REZ2023-02 – Rezoning of 

1009 Pacific.

Mr. Scanlon walked the audience through the presentation which included:
● History of the property since 1955. And included summaries of current

ownership, the City taking bids on demolition ($200K) and the overall
complexities you have with a project like this.

● Steps in the Process.Mr. Scanlon then went through the six steps completed or
underway in this first phase. Mr. Scanlon wanted to make sure the audience was
under no illusion that this would be an easy project to accomplish. Mr. Scanlon
stated that he has been through several school building reuses, and stated about
half are eventually demolished and the other half are usually very expensive to
rehabilitate. That expense is easy to understand because these buildings were
designed and built to be schools – and that primary purpose makes reuse very
difficult.

● Stipulations.Mr. Scanlon stated that at this point there are five stipulations that
staff is recommending the Planning Commission to include in their
recommendation and presented those. Those stipulations are included in the City
Staff Report.

Mr. Scanlon then walked the Planning Commission and audience through the City’s Staff report
which recommends the approval of REZ 2023-02. Mr. Scanlon stated that many of the elements
found in the report have to do with a famous rezoning case in Kansas that has become case law
and created a set of common practices for city planning and zoning in Kansas. The case is
Golden v. City of Overland Park. Mr. Scanlon then covered all nine (9) sections of the City Staff

93



Report. At the conclusion Mr. Scanlon asked if there were any questions of the Planning 
Commission and then invited Mr. Baker to present as the applicant.

Mr. Dustin Baker, Alcove Development LLC, introduced himself and his partner in this project, 
GW Weld, to the Planning Commission and audience. Mr. Baker then reviewed his expertise and 
the communities his firm works in. Mr. Baker stated that he believes this project is achievable but 
it will require a combination of grants and tax credits to bring it to fruition. Mr. GW Weld 
touched briefly on the steps in creating a HTC project. Mr. Baker stated that nothing can be 
started until there’s a rezoning of the property in place. The project they are proposing is an over 
55 of age independent senior apartment project that Alcove Development LLC would own and 
manage. The project would have between 20-24 units. The rezoning, if approved, then allows 
him to invest his time and money in putting a project together. Right now there’s not a project 
because the current zoning isn’t appropriate. Mr. Baker took questions from the audience as to 
the type of senior housing project that this would be. He said it was too early to tell and that 
market studies need to be done, a review of the credits that can be applied for and he and Mr. 
Weld would need to take a deeper dig into the bones of the structure and anticipated project costs.

Mr. Baker then asked if there were questions from the Planning Commission. Chairman Cutburth 
and Commissioner Wright asked questions around timing and process. Specifically,

● How long will it take you to get HTCs? Mr. Baker responded that’s a year-long process 
and first involves getting the structure on the historic register.

● What do you anticipate the start date to be for the project? Mr. Baker stated that 
sometime in the year 2025 would be the start date.

● How long do you anticipate this project taking once it’s underway? Mr. Baker stated 
construction should take approximately nine months.

Mr. Baker then took additional questions from the audience including,

● Stormwater concerns. Mr. Baker and GW Weld both stated they would explore ways to 
create additional green space and limit the runoff to address Ms. Hartwell’s concern.

● Concerns about tearing up Brown now that it’s been redone. Mr. Baker said he 
understands that any impact or damages need to be avoided as it relates to the 
improvements made to Brown Ave.

● Concerns about on-site management of the apartments. Mr. Weld stated an apartment 
complex needs to have about 100 units before they would consider an on-site manager 
and given the project size (20-24) units they can manage it by an emergency repair 
contact in the area and then managing other elements out of Lawrence.

Mr. Baker stated that this application is Step One and that he and GW look forward to working 
with the City and their neighbors. Mr. Baker also promised to get his contact information out to 
the people that attended the meeting tonight.

There being no further questions, Mr. Cutburth returned the item for Planning Commission 
action. Chairman Cutburth moved that the Planning Commission recommended to the City 
Council approval of application REZ2023-02 the rezoning of 1009 Pacific including stipulations 
a - e

94



presented by staff. Motion was seconded by Mr. Wastlund. The vote was Yeas: Cuthburt, 
Wastlund, Wright, Bradley, Samuels. Nos: none Abstention: King

REMAINDER OF MEETING MINUTES TO BE PRODUCED 
PRIOR TO THE NEXT SCHEDULE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION MEETING.

ADJOURNMENT. Motion made by Mr. Wastlund was seconded by Ms. Bradley to 
adjourn. Yeas: All. The chairperson declared the meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m.

/s/ Michael Scanlon
Michael Scanlon, Our City Planning LLC

95



Monthly Permit Report
November, 2023

Total Construction Value

$13,097,440.18
+$489,639.10 (11/23)

Total Permit Fees

$86,247.41
+$4,865.75 (11/23)

Total Permits

267
+20 (11/23)

Monthly Permit Fees (2022/2023) New Construction Homes

6
+2 (11/23)

Residential Demo Permits

8
+1 (11/23)

$0.00

$5,000.00

$10,000.00

$15,000.00

$20,000.00

$25,000.00

$30,000.00

$35,000.00

$40,000.00

$45,000.00

Permit
Fees

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2022 2023

96



Cost Summary By Task

Reporting Dates November 2023

Labor Hours Mat CostEqp Cost Total CostLabor Cost Con CostTask

Osawatomie KS

Activities

$476.00 $1,613.5518.00 $1,066.01 $71.54Alley Grading $0.008
$254.80 $947.2010.00 $692.40 $0.00Brush Pile Maintence $0.008
$307.56 $1,133.3611.00 $815.58 $10.22Concrete Repair $0.003
$959.00 $1,779.3638.00 $820.36 $0.00Equipment Maintence $0.0015
$254.44 $444.6710.00 $190.23 $0.00Event or Project Assistance $0.005
$57.30 $102.493.00 $45.19 $0.00Grubbing/Small plant Trimming $0.002
$27.96 $50.601.00 $22.64 $0.00Inspection $0.001
$19.10 $42.091.00 $22.99 $0.00Levee Maintenance $0.001

$305.60 $580.8016.00 $275.20 $0.00Levee Mowing/Trimming $0.003
$481.96 $864.0619.00 $382.10 $0.00Misc PW Task $0.008
$388.46 $608.6818.00 $220.22 $0.00Mowing $0.006
$427.52 $1,257.6416.00 $370.12 $460.00Pothole Repair $0.002
$399.90 $558.3815.50 $158.48 $0.00Preventative Maintenance $0.0014
$199.90 $500.619.00 $300.71 $0.00PW Equipment/Supplies $0.004
$55.92 $136.642.00 $80.72 $0.00PW Locates $0.001

$104.40 $257.424.00 $153.02 $0.00Repair needed in Park or Cemetery $0.003
$89.18 $131.883.50 $42.70 $0.00Road/Trail Grading $0.002

$104.40 $352.264.00 $129.10 $118.76Sign Repair/Replacement $0.002
$122.08 $355.074.00 $186.64 $46.35Snow/Ice Removal $0.002
$55.92 $250.782.00 $86.92 $107.94Stormwater Repair $0.001

$503.10 $1,651.3821.00 $1,138.43 $9.85Street Repair Asphalt $0.002
$614.87 $1,690.1123.00 $497.74 $577.50Street Repair Concrete $0.003
$358.80 $641.7515.00 $282.95 $0.00Trash/Recycling Change out or Pick Up $0.009
$406.22 $1,135.4417.00 $729.22 $0.00Tree Care $0.007
$114.60 $217.806.00 $103.20 $0.00Trimming/Weeding $0.001
$223.68 $703.278.00 $479.59 $0.00Vehicle Maintenance $0.003

Tasks: 295.00
$7,312.67

$18,007.28
$1,402.16

$9,292.46 $0.0026 116

Alley Grading 9.0%

Brush Pile Maintence 5.3%

Concrete Repair 6.3%

Equipment Maintence 9.9%

Event or Project Assistance 2.5%

Grubbing/Small plant Trimming 0.6%

Inspection 0.3%

Levee Maintenance 0.2%

Levee Mowing/Trimming 3.2%

Misc PW Task 4.8%

Mowing 3.4%

Pothole Repair 7.0%

Preventative Maintenance 3.1%

PW Equipment/Supplies 2.8%

PW Locates 0.8%

Repair needed in Park or Cemetery 1.4%

Road/Trail Grading 0.7%

Sign Repair/Replacement 2.0%

Snow/Ice Removal 2.0%

Stormwater Repair 1.4%

Street Repair Asphalt 9.2%

Total: 100.0%

Cost Summary by Task

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

$1,800 Alley Grading Brush Pile Maintence

Concrete Repair Equipment Maintence

Event or Project
Assistance

Grubbing/Small plant
Trimming

Inspection Levee Maintenance

Levee
Mowing/Trimming

Misc PW Task

Mowing Pothole Repair

Preventative
Maintenance

PW Equipment/Supplies

PW Locates Repair needed in Park or
Cemetery

Road/Trail Grading Sign
Repair/Replacement

Snow/Ice Removal Stormwater Repair

Street Repair Asphalt Street Repair Concrete

Trash/Recycling Change
out or Pick Up

Tree Care

Trimming/Weeding Vehicle Maintenance

Cost Total by Task

December 6, 2023 1
97



Cost Summary By Task

Reporting Dates November 2023

Labor Hours Mat CostEqp Cost Total CostLabor Cost Con CostTask

Osawatomie KS

Activities

$3,032.38 $6,135.77112.00 $3,103.39 $0.00General Electric Distribution $0.0018
$2,292.42 $6,414.0097.00 $3,998.94 $122.64General Water Distribution $0.009

$175.32 $175.326.00 $0.00 $0.00Install EV charger $0.001
$627.20 $2,157.6524.00 $1,237.96 $292.49Leak Check Water Main $0.001
$264.84 $1,356.3412.00 $1,030.00 $61.50Leak Check Water Service $0.002
$88.28 $255.924.00 $167.64 $0.00Lift Station Maintenance $0.001

$225.32 $949.318.00 $237.78 $486.21New Electrical Service $0.001
$794.52 $11,529.5036.00 $3,035.83 $7,699.15New Water Service Installation $0.003

$18,372.40 $49,593.40768.00 $0.00 $31,221.00Potable Water Treatment $0.0031
$272.40 $429.466.00 $157.06 $0.00Power Outage $0.001
$132.42 $358.506.00 $226.08 $0.00Raise Lower Meter Lid and Ring $0.001

$1,558.78 $2,532.9461.00 $974.16 $0.00Read Meter $0.0014
$954.46 $1,737.1936.00 $782.73 $0.00Sewer Main Check (Clogged) $0.005

$1,459.96 $3,935.2454.00 $2,475.28 $0.00Tree in Electric $0.002
$7,016.08 $7,016.08280.00 $0.00 $0.00Wastewater Treatment $0.0030

$353.12 $1,424.0216.00 $1,070.90 $0.00Water Dirt/Rock Grading $0.003

Tasks: 1,526.00
$37,619.90

$96,000.64
$39,882.99

$18,497.75 $0.0016 123

General Electric Distribution 6.4%

General Water Distribution 6.7%

Install EV charger 0.2%

Leak Check Water Main 2.2%

Leak Check Water Service 1.4%

Lift Station Maintenance 0.3%

New Electrical Service 1.0%

New Water Service Installation 12.0%

Potable Water Treatment 51.7%

Power Outage 0.4%

Raise Lower Meter Lid and Ring 0.4%

Read Meter 2.6%

Sewer Main Check (Clogged) 1.8%

Tree in Electric 4.1%

Wastewater Treatment 7.3%

Water Dirt/Rock Grading 1.5%

Total: 100.0%

Cost Summary by Task

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000
General Electric
Distribution
General Water
Distribution

Install EV charger

Leak Check Water Main

Leak Check Water
Service
Lift Station
Maintenance

New Electrical Service

New Water Service
Installation
Potable Water
Treatment

Power Outage

Raise Lower Meter Lid
and Ring

Read Meter

Sewer Main Check
(Clogged)

Tree in Electric

Wastewater Treatment

Water Dirt/Rock
Grading

Cost Total by Task

December 7, 2023 1
98


	12-14-2023 Agenda
	11-30-23 council minutes
	20-1414L Dec. Invoice
	22-1195L Osawatomie Waterline Invoice
	Worksheets
	#16


	23-1022L_12.2023 Invoice
	AP Council Report - November 2023
	INVOICE 10 - Osawatomie John Brown and South Levee Loop
	INVOICE 21 - Osawatomie 2022-2023 City Street Improvements
	Killough Pay App 6 - Brown Ave.
	10.A.AIS.RES_1193-1195_Condemnation Report
	10.A.RES.1193.Condemn_1116 4th St
	RESOLUTION NO 1193

	10.B.RES.1194.Condemn_719 5th St.
	RESOLUTION NO 1194

	10.C.RES.1195.Condemn_321 Mill
	RESOLUTION NO 1195

	10.A.AIS_1196_Annual_Review_ of_City_Council_Policies
	10.A.RES_1196_Annual_Review_of_the_City_Policies
	10.A.SUPP.1196.Council.Policies
	10.B.AIS.1197.Contract_BGConsult_Const.Observe
	10.B.RES_1197_Contract_BGConsult_Const.Observe.
	10.B.SUPP.1197.6th Street ConstObserv.Svcs
	Item_10_C
	10.C.RES.1198.Approval_of_REZ2023-02.pdf
	10.C.AIS.RES_1198_Approval_of_REZ2023_02.pdf
	20231025095616857.pdf
	Public Hearing Swenson Rezone
	10.C.STAFFREP.RES_1198_Approval_of_REX2023_02m.pdf

	November Monthly Building Permit Report
	Public Works PubWorks November Report
	PubWorks Utilities Dept November



